Roland

AUDIO RECORDER AR-200R

Owner's Manual

Before using this unit, carefully read the sections entitled: "USING THE UNIT SAFELY" and "IMPORTANT NOTES" (p. 2–3, p. 4). These sections provide important information concerning the proper operation of the unit. Additionally, in order to feel assured that you have gained a good grasp of every feature provided by your new unit, Owner's manual should be read in its entirety. The manual should be saved and kept on hand as a convenient reference.



Copyright © 2006 ROLAND CORPORATION All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced in any form without the written permission of ROLAND CORPORATION.

For the U.K.

IMPORTANT: THE WIRES IN THIS MAINS LEAD ARE COLOURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING CODE.

BLUE: NEUTRAL BROWN: LIVE

As the colours of the wires in the mains lead of this apparatus may not correspond with the coloured markings identifying the terminals in your plug, proceed as follows:

The wire which is coloured BLUE must be connected to the terminal which is marked with the letter N or coloured BLACK. The wire which is coloured BROWN must be connected to the terminal which is marked with the letter L or coloured RED. Under no circumstances must either of the above wires be connected to the earth terminal of a three pin plug.

USING THE UNIT SAFELY

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE PREVENTION OF FIRE, ELECTRIC SHOCK, OR INJURY TO PERSONS

About 🖄 WARNING and 🖄 CAUTION Notices

	Used for instructions intended to alert the user to the risk of death or severe injury should the unit be used improperly.
	Used for instructions intended to alert the user to the risk of injury or material damage should the unit be used improperly.
	* Material damage refers to damage or other adverse effects caused with respect to the home and all its furnishings, as well to domestic animals or pets.

About the Symbols

Roland.

wobbling.



This unit should be used only with a rack mount

When using the unit with a rack or stand recom-

stable. If not using a rack or stand, you still need

placing the unit provides a level surface that will

.....

Be sure to use only the AC adaptor supplied with

installation matches the input voltage specified on

the unit. Also, make sure the line voltage at the

the AC adaptor's body. Other AC adaptors may

use a different polarity, or be designed for a

different voltage, so their use could result in damage, malfunction, or electric shock.

mended by Roland, the rack or stand must be carefully placed so it is level and sure to remain

to make sure that any location you choose for

properly support the unit, and keep it from

adaptor (RAD-50) that is recommended by

ALWAYS OBSERVE THE FOLLOWING

• Before using this unit, make sure to read the instructions below, and the Owner's Manual.



• Do not open (or modify in any way) the unit or its AC adaptor.

.....

.....

• Do not attempt to repair the unit, or replace parts within it (except when this manual provides specific instructions directing you to do so). Refer all servicing to your retailer, the nearest Roland Service Center, or an authorized Roland distributor, as listed on the "Information" page.

- Never use or store the unit in places that are:
 - Subject to temperature extremes (e.g., direct sunlight in an enclosed vehicle, near a heating duct, on top of heat-generating equipment); or are



- Damp (e.g., baths, washrooms, on wet floors); or are
- Humid; or are
- Exposed to rain; or are
- Dusty; or are
- Subject to high levels of vibration.

Take care not to exceed the maximum rated specifications (100 mA) when using the DC OUT terminal for the power supply.

.....

 Use only the attached power-supply cord. Also, the supplied power cord must not be used with any other device.



WARNING

- Do not excessively twist or bend the power cord, nor place heavy objects on it. Doing so can damage the cord, producing severed elements and short circuits. Damaged cords are fire and shock hazards!
- This unit, either alone or in combination with an amplifier and headphones or speakers, may be capable of producing sound levels that could cause permanent hearing loss. Do not operate for a long period of time at a high volume level, or at a level that is uncomfortable. If you experience any hearing loss or ringing in the ears, you should immediately stop using the unit, and consult an audiologist.

.....

• Do not allow any objects (e.g., flammable material, coins, pins); or liquids of any kind (water, soft drinks, etc.) to penetrate the unit.

.....

- \bigotimes
- Immediately turn the power off, remove the AC adaptor from the outlet, and request servicing by your retailer, the nearest Roland Service Center, or an authorized Roland distributor, as listed on the "Information" page when:
 - The AC adaptor, the power-supply cord, or the plug has been damaged; or
 - If smoke or unusual odor occurs
 - Objects have fallen into, or liquid has been spilled onto the unit; or
 - The unit has been exposed to rain (or otherwise has become wet); or
 - The unit does not appear to operate normally or exhibits a marked change in performance.
- In households with small children, an adult should provide supervision until the child is capable of following all the rules essential for the safe operation of the unit.

.....

• Protect the unit from strong impact. (Do not drop it!)



• Do not force the unit's power-supply cord to share an outlet with an unreasonable number of other devices. Be especially careful when using extension cords—the total power used by all devices you have connected to the extension cord's outlet must never exceed the power rating (watts/amperes) for the extension cord. Excessive loads can cause the insulation on the cord to heat up and eventually melt through.

.....

• Before using the unit in a foreign country, consult with your retailer, the nearest Roland Service Center, or an authorized Roland distributor, as listed on the "Information" page.

.....



A CAUTION

• The unit and the AC adaptor should be located so their location or position does not interfere with their proper ventilation.

.....

• Always grasp only the plug on the AC adaptor cord when plugging into, or unplugging from, an outlet or this unit.

.....



- At regular intervals, you should unplug the AC adaptor and clean it by using a dry cloth to wipe all dust and other accumulations away from its prongs. Also, disconnect the power plug from the power outlet whenever the unit is to remain unused for an extended period of time. Any accumulation of dust between the power plug and the power outlet can result in poor insulation and lead to fire.
- Try to prevent cords and cables from becoming entangled. Also, all cords and cables should be placed so they are out of the reach of children.
- Never climb on top of, nor place heavy objects on the unit.

.....

- Never handle the AC adaptor or its plugs with wet hands when plugging into, or unplugging from, an outlet or this unit.
- Before moving the unit, disconnect the AC adaptor and all cords coming from external devices.
- Before cleaning the unit, turn off the power and
- Before cleaning the unit, turn off the power and unplug the AC adaptor from the outlet (p. 9).
- Whenever you suspect the possibility of lightning in your area, disconnect the AC adaptor from the outlet.

.....

• Keep any screw terminals, the ground terminal screw, you may remove and the included Euroblock connector, rubber feet, and card protector attachment screws in a safe place out of children's reach, so there is no chance of them being swallowed accidentally.

.....



3

IMPORTANT NOTES

In addition to the items listed under "USING THE UNIT SAFELY" on page 2–3, please read and observe the following:

Power Supply

- Do not connect this unit to same electrical outlet that is being used by an electrical appliance that is controlled by an inverter (such as a refrigerator, washing machine, microwave oven, or air conditioner), or that contains a motor. Depending on the way in which the electrical appliance is used, power supply noise may cause this unit to malfunction or may produce audible noise. If it is not practical to use a separate electrical outlet, connect a power supply noise filter between this unit and the electrical outlet.
- The AC adaptor will begin to generate heat after long hours of consecutive use. This is normal, and is not a cause for concern.
- Before connecting this unit to other devices, turn off the power to all units. This will help prevent malfunctions and/or damage to speakers or other devices.

Placement

- Using the unit near power amplifiers (or other equipment containing large power transformers) may induce hum. To alleviate the problem, change the orientation of this unit; or move it farther away from the source of interference.
- This device may interfere with radio and television reception. Do not use this device in the vicinity of such receivers.
- Noise may be produced if wireless communications devices, such as cell phones, are operated in the vicinity of this unit. Such noise could occur when receiving or initiating a call, or while conversing. Should you experience such problems, you should relocate such wireless devices so they are at a greater distance from this unit, or switch them off.
- When moved from one location to another where the temperature and/or humidity is very different, water droplets (condensation) may form inside the unit. Damage or malfunction may result if you attempt to use the unit in this condition. Therefore, before using the unit, you must allow it to stand for several hours, until the condensation has completely evaporated.
- Depending on the material and temperature of the surface on which you place the unit, its rubber feet may discolor or mar the surface.

You can place a piece of felt or cloth under the rubber feet to prevent this from happening. If you do so, please make sure that the unit will not slip or move accidentally.

Maintenance

- For everyday cleaning wipe the unit with a soft, dry cloth or one that has been slightly dampened with water. To remove stubborn dirt, use a cloth impregnated with a mild, non-abrasive detergent. Afterwards, be sure to wipe the unit thoroughly with a soft, dry cloth.
- Never use benzine, thinners, alcohol or solvents of any kind, to avoid the possibility of discoloration and/or deformation.

Additional Precautions

- Unfortunately, it may be impossible to restore the contents of data that was stored memory card once it has been lost. Roland Corporation assumes no liability concerning such loss of data.
- Use a reasonable amount of care when using the unit's buttons, sliders, or other controls; and when using its jacks and connectors. Rough handling can lead to malfunctions.

- When connecting / disconnecting all cables, grasp the connector itself—never pull on the cable. This way you will avoid causing shorts, or damage to the cable's internal elements.
- To avoid disturbing your neighbors, try to keep the unit's volume at reasonable levels. You may prefer to use headphones, so you do not need to be concerned about those around you (especially when it is late at night).
- When you need to transport the unit, package it in the box (including padding) that it came in, if possible. Otherwise, you will need to use equivalent packaging materials.
- Some connection cables contain resistors. Do not use cables that incorporate resistors for connecting to this unit. The use of such cables can cause the sound level to be extremely low, or impossible to hear. For information on cable specifications, contact the manufacturer of the cable.

Before Using Cards

Using Memory Cards

• Carefully insert the DATA card all the way in—until it is firmly in place.



- Never touch the terminals of the DATA card. Also, avoid getting the terminals dirty.
- This unit's memory card slot accepts CompactFlash memory cards. Microdrive storage media are not compatible.
- CompactFlash cards are constructed using precision components; handle the cards carefully, paying particular note to the following.
 - To prevent damage to the cards from static electricity, be sure to discharge any static electricity from your own body before handling the cards.
 - Do not touch or allow metal to come into contact with the contact portion of the cards.
 - Do not bend, drop, or subject cards to strong shock or vibration.
 - Do not keep cards in direct sunlight, in closed vehicles, or other such locations (storage temperature: -25 to 85° C).
 - Do not allow cards to become wet.
 - Do not disassemble or modify the cards.

Copyright

- Recording, duplication, distribution, sale, lease, performance, or broadcast of copyrighted material (musical works, visual works, broadcasts, live performances, etc.) belonging to a third party in part or in whole without the permission of the copyright owner is forbidden by law.
- Do not use this unit for purposes that could infringe on a copyright held by a third party. We assume no responsibility whatsoever with regard to any infringements of third-party copyrights arising through your use of this unit.

Contents

USING THE UNIT SAFELY	2
IMPORTANT NOTES	4
Main Features	7
Panel Descriptions	8
Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off Turning On the Power	
Installation	10
Attaching the Rubber Feet (Included Items) Rack Mounting (Important Notes on Heat Radiation) Attaching the Card Protector	10
Examples of Usage and Connection for the AR-200R	12
Together with Other Equipment (System Examples) Using the Control Input and Output Connectors Using the MIDI Connectors What You Can Do (Usage Tips) Repeat Playback of the Same Phrase	12 13 14
Playing a Variety of Phrases in Succession	
Cards Handled by the AR-200R Types of Usable Cards Card Storage Times and Number of Phrases Formatting a Card Important Notes on Handling Cards Card Compatibility with Other Models in the AR Series	15 15 15 16
Recording Audio	
Recording Units—Phrases Connecting External Devices Procedure for Recording Required Settings for Recording Audio Signals (Recording Settings) Procedure Checking What You Recorded Information Recorded on the Card	18 19 19 22 23
Playback Using the Panel (Manual Playback)	
Deleting Phrases	25
Recording and Playing MIDI Data (MIDI Phrase)	
What is a MIDI Phrase? Connecting External Devices Procedure for Recording MIDI Phrases Procedure for Playing Back MIDI Phrases	26 26
Controlling the AR-200R from an External Device (Control Input Connectors)	28
What Is No-voltage/Make-contact? Types of Control Input Playback Types of Control Input Recording Playback By Card Data Cards Created on the AR-3000R/3000/2000 Card made on the AR-200R/2005/200/100 AR-200R Settings	28 28 28 28 28 28
AR-200R Settings Playing Back Phrases Assigned to the Connectors (Direct Playback) Connecting External Davies	30
Connecting External Devices Operational Specifications for Direct Playback (Last-In) AR-200R Settings	30

Specifying Phrases in Binary Notation (Binary Playback)	
What Is Binary Playback?/Use and Applications	
Connecting External Devices	
Operational Specifications of Binary Playback	
AR-200R Settings	
To Specify Phrases with Binary Signals	
Phrase Number / Binary Signal chart	
Repeated Playback of Phrases (Interval Playback)	
Operational Specifications of Interval Playback	
AR-200R Settings	
Controlling Recording with the Control Connectors (Binary Rec)	
What is Binary Rec/Use and Applications	
Connecting Equipment	
Operational Specifications for Binary Rec	
AR-200R Settings	
To Specify Phrases with Binary Signals	
Controlling Another Device with the AR-200R (Control Output Connectors)	38
Starting Another Device (Busy Out)	
Controlling Another Device (Control Out)	

Applications Guide (For Use in Conjunction with the AR-3000R/3000)

Controlling the AR-200R with MIDI Signals (MIDI Control)	42
What is MIDI Control?/What You Can Do Using MIDI Control	
Playback of Phrases Using MIDI Signals	
Connecting External Devices	
Assignment of Phrases to Note Numbers (MIDI Note Map)	
AR-200R Settings	
Synchronized Recording and Playback with Multiple AR Units (AR-LINK)	45
Other Useful Functions During Phrase Playback	
Other Useful Functions During Phrase Playback	47
Other Useful Functions During Phrase Playback Playing Data for Two Units on the Left and Right (Dual Mono Mode)	47
Other Useful Functions During Phrase Playback	47 47 47

Appendices

Troubleshooting	50
Error messages	52
Regarding Cards	53
Card-specific Audio Recording Time Chart Recorded Phrase Data	
Recorded Phrase Data	
Settings When a Card Is Formatted AR-3000R/3000 settings that can be used	
MODE SW Settings	
Control I/O Connector specifications	57
MIDI Implementation	58
MIDI Implementation Chart	64
Specification	66
Index	

Main Features

High-quality Recording and Playback

Thanks to Roland's innovative RDAC system, you can enjoy high-quality, recording and playback using less data. You can select recording settings that suit the situation and the capacity of the card (sampling frequency: 6 levels, recording mode: 4 levels). This ensures support for recording and playback in a variety of situations and uses.

What you record and the settings are all saved on the card, so you can change situations rapidly simply by changing cards. The AR-200R can record and play back up to a maximum of 250 phrases (using cards created on Roland's AR-3000R/3000/200S allows playback of up to 1000 phrases).

Audio Recording System with No Moving Parts

An audio recording system that uses CF cards and has no moving parts is employed. The system has no rotating parts or drive mechanism, so it's practically maintenance free. It provides excellent sound quality and superior reliability.

A Variety of Control Jacks for a Wide Range of Playback Methods

As connectors to use for control, the unit features a Control In jack, MIDI connectors, and AR-LINK connectors. This lets you select from a variety of playback methods and create systems matched to usage and situations.

Compact Body for Easy Portability

The compact half-rack size body takes little space, and can be conveniently transported. If a separately sold RAD-50 rack mount adaptor is used, the AR-200R can be installed in an EIA rack.

MIDI Connectors Allow for Play of Musical Instruments and Syncing with Video

Since the unit is equipped with MIDI connectors, you can record and play back MIDI signals. You can play an electronic musical instrument automatically, just like playing back an audio phrase.

Control of recording/playback using MIDI signals is also supported. This means you can use MTC and MMC signals to obtain recording/playback that is synchronized to video and other external devices.

Multi-track Operation-AR-LINK Feature

The AR-LINK feature lets you link the unit to up to 31 other units to create a completely synchronized multi-track system. The AR-3000R/3000 is required as a master control device.

Capable of DC-Powered Operation

Since external DC power supply is also supported, a wide variety of applications are possible.

Panel Descriptions



Front panel

- 1. PHONES jack
- 2. MIDI/CLIP indicator
- 3. SLAVE Indicator
- 4. Display
- 5. PLAY button
- 6. PLAY indicator
- 7. STOP button
- **8.** Decrement ($\mathbf{\nabla}$) button
- **9.** Increment (▲) button
- **10.** MEMORY FULL indicator
- **11.**CARD slot
- **12.** Eject button

Rear panel

13. OUTPUT jacks

- **14.** INPUT jacks
- **15.** INPUT VOLUME

16. Control input and DC input terminal (CONT A)

- * The terminal/connector section features a protective cover. Whenever you remove this cover, such as when making connections to the connectors, make sure not to lose it. Additionally, keep the cover out of the reach of children.
- 17. Control I/O connector (CONT B)
 - * This is not an RS-232C type connector.

18. MIDI OUT/THRU connector

This is normally used as a MIDI OUT connector. However, by using a card with settings made on an AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000, this can also function as a MIDI THRU connector.

- **19.** GND terminal
- **20.** MIDI IN connector
- **21.** AR-LINK Connectors (OUT and IN)
- **22.** Power connector (for supplied AC adaptor)

Bottom chassis

23. REC MODE switches

24. MODE switches

Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off

- To prevent malfunction and/or damage to speakers or other devices, always turn down the volume, and turn off the power on all devices before making any connections.
- This instrument is equipped with balanced (TRS) type jacks. Wiring diagrams for these jacks are shown below. Make connections after first checking the wiring diagrams of other equipment you intend to connect.



- When connection cables with resistors are used, the volume level of equipment connected to the inputs (INOUT jacks) may be low. If this happens, use connection cables that do not contain resistors.
- Depending on the circumstances of a particular setup, you may experience a discomforting sensation, or perceive that the surface feels gritty to the touch when you touch this device, microphones connected to it, or the metal portions of other objects, such as guitars. This is due to an infinitesimal electrical charge, which is absolutely harmless. However, if you are concerned about this, connect the ground terminal (see figure) with an external ground. When the unit is grounded, a slight hum may occur, depending on the particulars of your installation. If you are unsure of the connection method, contact the nearest Roland Service Center, or an authorized Roland distributor, as listed on the "Information" page.

Unsuitable places for connection

- Water pipes (may result in shock or electrocution)
- Gas pipes (may result in fire or explosion)
- Telephone-line ground or lightning rod (may be dangerous in the event of lightning)
- Once the connections have been completed, turn on power to your various devices in the order specified. By turning on devices in the wrong order, you risk causing malfunction and/or damage to speakers and other devices.
- (When turning the power off, reverse this procedure.)

Connected device \rightarrow AR-200R \rightarrow Power amp, etc.

- This unit is equipped with a protection circuit. A brief interval (a few seconds) after power up is required before the unit will operate normally.
- To avoid risk of electric shock, do not touch the connectors while the unit is in operation.
- Never remove a card during recording of phrases. Furthermore, do not turn off the power or remove the AC adaptor cord during recording of phrases. Doing so may damage the card.
- To avoid the risk of malfunction and/or damage, insert only CF Card into the disk drive. Never insert any other type of disk. Avoid getting paper clips, coins, or any other foreign objects inside the drive.
- The pin assignment for the connectors is as shown below. Before making any connections, make sure that this pin assignment is compatible with that of all your other devices.



Turning On the Power

The AR-200R is not equipped with a power switch. Power is turned on when electricity is supplied to the power connector (for the supplied AC adaptor), or to the control input and DC input, or control I/O connectors' DC IN (p. 8).

Supplied AC adaptor: PSB-1U

Control input and DC input/control I/O connector specifications

Voltage: 9 to 24 V DC

Current: 1200 mA

* Refer also to "**DC power supply"** (p. 57).



Do not supply electrical power simultaneously to multiple connectors or terminals; doing so may result in damage to the unit.

Installation

Attaching the Rubber Feet (Included Items)

Attach these as required, such as when you're using the AR-200R without mounting it on a rack or the like.

Peel off the double-sided tape from the rubber feet and affix the rubber feet at the locations shown in the following figure.



Bottom Chassis

Rack Mounting (Important Notes on Heat Radiation)

When you are mounting the unit on a rack or the like, give attention to the following points to ensure efficient cooling.

- Install in a well-ventilated location.
- Avoid mounting in a sealed rack. Warm air within the rack cannot escape and is sucked into the unit again, making efficient cooling impossible.
- When you are using a stacked mounting arrangement, be especially sure to provide for adequate ventilation within the rack to keep discharged air from being sucked back into the unit. If the back surface of the rack cannot be kept open, then provide a ventilation port or ventilation fan at the upper area of the back surface of the rack, where warm air accumulates.
- When you are using the unit in a portable case or rack, remove the covers from the front and back surfaces of the case, so that the front and back surfaces of the unit are not obstructed.
- If an error message informing you of a dangerous rise in temperature appears (p. 52), then heat-dissipating measures are needed. Refer to the cautions just described and check the installed state of the unit and the rack.
- * When placing the unit on the rack, be careful not to pinch your fingers.
- * For more information about installation, also see "**Placement**" in the Usage Notes (p. 4).

Rack-Mounting the AR-200R

1

1

By attaching a rack mount adaptor to the AR-200R (RAD-50: sold separately) you can install it in an EIA rack. One RAD-50 can accommodate up to two AR-200R units.

Remove the four rubber feet from bottom of the unit.



Attach the RAD-50 adaptor to the AR-200R using the screws that are supplied with the RAD-50.



NOTE

When turning the unit upside-down, get a bunch of newspapers or magazines, and place them under the four corners or at both ends to prevent damage to the buttons and controls. Also, you should try to orient the unit so no buttons or controls get damaged.

NOTE

When turning the unit upside-down, handle with care to avoid dropping it, or allowing it to fall or tip over.

Attaching the Card Protector

By attaching the Card Protector (supplied) to the AR-200R, you can prevent the memory card from inadvertently being removed from the AR-200R.

After confirming that the card is securely inserted in the card slot, use the provided screws to attach the Card Protector, as shown in the figure below.



Examples of Usage and Connection for the AR-200R

You can use the AR-200R alone or in combination with other AR-200R units or other equipment to play audio in a wide variety of scenes. This section shows some examples of these. You can use these examples as a starting point for making changes to match your own usage circumstances.

Together with Other Equipment (System Examples)

Using the Control Input and Output Connectors

• Control Input: Messages, explanations, warnings, announcements, effect sounds, and the like are played with high sound quality according to control signals from sensors, buttons, and switches.



Sensor Program Timer Momentary Switch COMPCCO. Sensor-triggered automatic broadcasts Q Pressing the switch plays back Control timer for automatic broadcasts a set announcement, guidance Guidance announcements made upon message, explanation, or the like •Playback of message broadcasts and detection of a person's presence announcements at regular, set times in offices, factories, or other such areas Playback of event performances at ·Set announcements played back as required attractions and other sites •Broadcasts at set times of upcoming events at amusements areas ·Broadcast of museum exhibition explanations or guidance Types of External Control . . AR-200R Power Amp Control Signal Audio Signal Control Output: Control signals can be output during or after phrase [z playback to control an external device. "Controlling Another **Device with the AR-200R** (Control Output Connectors)" (p. 38) Busy Out Control Signal Audio Signal AR-200R Power Amp 0 O · == Only during phrase playback, power amp or other Power Unit gear is powered up (offset time set to five seconds) o**ri** ----Power Lamp lights during phrase playback Reray Switch Control Out After playback ends, controls external device * A card created on the AR-3000R/3000/2000 or ARE-3000 is required. AR-200R Power Amp 00...... Extinguishing lights •When elevator doors are closed and other similar situations

Examples of Usage and Connection for the AR-200R

Using the MIDI Connectors

• Spatial Expression

Using MIDI signals from a master AR-3000R/3000 (sold separately), you can play back background music performances from sound generating modules and other devices as well as sound effects phrases on slave AR-200Rs. This lets you create sonic fields with six-channel multi-playback.

"Controlling the AR-200R with MIDI Signals (MIDI Control)" (p. 42)



• Sound-field Control

Using batch MIDI control from a switch box, you can change programs on a mixer, equalizer, or the like to control the sonic field.



Examples of Usage and Connection for the AR-200R

What You Can Do (Usage Tips)

Repeat Playback of the Same Phrase

There are several methods for doing this. Choose a playback method that matches your usage conditions.

Changing Playback Mode Settings to Interval Mode

You can have phrases be played back repeatedly at set intervals.

Inputting a Continuous Make-contact Signal to the Control Input Connectors

You can repeat playback by continuously shorting the control input connectors.

* With some settings, playback doesn't repeat even when you continuously input a make-contact signal.

For information, refer to **"Controlling the AR-200R from an External Device (Control Input Connectors)"** (p. 28).

Playing a Variety of Phrases in Succession

There are several methods for doing this. Choose a playback method that matches your usage conditions.

Using Direct Playback of Control Input

By inputting control signals to a connector number from 1 through 9, you can play back the phrase assigned to the number.

Using Binary Playback of Control Input

You can select phrases by inputting binary signals to connector numbers 1 through 8, and play the selected phrases in succession each time you input control signals to the START connector.







Cards Handled by the AR-200R

Types of Usable Cards

The AR-200R stores recorded audio and MIDI signals on the card. Also, all information other than recorded audio (phrase information) is stored on the card as well. (That is, it is not stored in the AR unit itself.) This means that you can change the settings simply by swapping cards. You can use the ARE-3000 AR Card Editor software to back up all of the data on memory cards using a Windows computer. When restoring backed up data to memory cards, be sure to use memory cards formatted with the AR.

Please download the ARE-3000 (free of charge) from the following URL. http://www.rolandsystemsgroup.net/

Card Storage Times and Number of Phrases

A maximum of 250 phrases may be created on cards formatted on the AR-200R.

- * The available recording time for a single card varies according to card capacity and recording settings.
- * For a rough guide to maximum recording times with various settings, see the **"Card-specific Audio Recording Time Chart"** in the reference materials (p. 53).

Formatting a Card

When you use a new card or a card used previously on a device other than the unit, you must first format (initialize) the card.

- * Cards formatted on the AR-3000R/3000 can be used just as they are.
- * Please refer to p. 17 for information regarding previous models (AR-2000/100).

NOTE

Information cannot be stored in memory in the AR unit itself, so be sure to purchase cards separately. There are several types of card capacities available. The amount of information that you can store differs according to card capacity.

Basic Editing Operations

MEMO

Depending on the type of CF card you are using, it may not be possible to perform recording or playback at the set RDAC-Grade and RDAC-Mode due to data write speed and other factors.



Depending on the length of stored phrases, it may not be possible to create the set maximum number of phrases.



The time required for formatting a card varies with the card type (capacity), but may last from several seconds up to ten or twenty seconds.

Cards Handled by the AR-200R

Notes Regarding Formatting

Performing formatting erases all data on the card. Before you format the card, make sure it contains no data you don't want to lose.

- * Do not format cards on a computer.
- * *A maximum of 250 phrases may be created on cards formatted on the AR-200R.*
- * The available recording time for a single card varies according to card capacity and recording settings.
- * For a rough guide to maximum recording times with various settings, see the **"Card-specific Audio Recording Time Chart"** in the reference materials (p. 53).

Procedure for Formatting Cards

Confirm that there is no card inserted in the card slot.

Hold down the STOP button for at least 2 seconds A flashing "Fot" appears.





2

Insert the card that you wish to format into card slot.



5

Press the PLAY button, formatting will begin.

If you wish to stop the process, press the STOP button. When formatting is completed, the message is changed in the display.



Important Notes on Handling Cards

- When Inserting
- Insert the card all the way in—until it is firmly in place.
- When Removing
- To remove the card, press the eject button.

Never remove a card during recording, playback, or formatting. Furthermore, do not turn off the power or remove the AC adaptor cord during recording, playback, or formatting. Doing so may damage the card.



Depending on the length of stored phrases, it may not be possible to create the set maximum number of phrases.

Never remove a card while formatting is in progress.

Card Compatibility with Other Models in the AR Series

The AR-200R's file format is the same as the format for the AR-3000R/3000/200S/200.

Using Cards Formatted on Earlier Model Units with the AR-200R

- Compact Flash cards used with AR-3000R/3000/200S/200s can be used as is with the AR-200R.
- Files on PC cards used on AR-3000/200/2000/100 models can be used by copying the data to CompactFlash with the ARE-3000. In addition, cards can be copied with the AR-3000 using a Compact Flash Card Adaptor (cards which have not been copied using ARE-3000 or an AR-3000 cannot be used).

Using Cards Formatted on the AR-200R with Earlier Models

- Cards can be used as is with the AR-3000R/3000/200S/200.
- Cards can be used as is with the AR-3000/200 by copying the data to PC card (PM series) with the ARE-3000. (Use a Compact Flash Card Adaptor.)
- Cards cannot be used with the AR-2000/100. (Cards copied using other AR models cannot be used.)

Please download the ARE-3000 (free of charge) from the following URL. http://www.rolandsystemsgroup.net/

Recording Units—Phrases

A single item of data recorded from the point where you start recording until the point where you stop recording is called a phrase. Audio data and MIDI data are both handled as phrases. Phrases are managed by phrase numbers.

Phrase Number

Connecting External Devices

The AR-200R features analog input jacks (INPUT) on the rear panel.Refer to the following figure when connecting the AR-200R with external devices.



"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" (P.9)

What is a MIDI Phrase?"

(P.26)

Monitor Output During Recording and Recording Standby

Sounds input from the analog input jack (INPUT) can be output from the audio output jacks (BALANCED OUTPUT) during recording, recording standby, and ordinary playback.

* The quality of sounds output from the audio output jack differs from that of RDAC-Grade or RDAC-Mode sound quality. Be sure to play back the phrase after recording to confirm the quality of the content.

Procedure for Recording

To enable recording with the AR-200R using cards formatted on the AR-2000, carry out the **"Formatting a Card"** (P.15) procedure.

Required Settings for Recording Audio Signals (Recording Settings)

In order perform recording matched to usage conditions, including the connected equipment, recording source, sound quality, time, and playback system, you make recording settings.

Recording settings are made in phrase units. You can mix phrases having different recording settings on a single card.

The possible recording time of a card varies according to the recording settings. For a rough guide to maximum recording times with various settings, see the **"Recording Audio"** (P.18) in the reference materials (p. 53).

RDAC-Grade (sampling frequency) (REC MODE SW-3)

The RDAC grade is the type of sampling frequency for digital recording. On the AR-200R, you can select from among six grades.

		Sound quality	Amount of card memory consumed
S-HIGH :	48 kHz	High	Large
HIGH :	44.1 kHz	Î	Î
STANDARD :	32 kHz		
LONG1 :	22.05 kHz		
LONG2 :	16 kHz		Ļ
ANNOUNCE :	8 kHz		Small

STANDARD is best for ordinary recording. ANNOUNCE uses up the least card space, and is best for recording announcements, narration, and the like. When you are recording audio such as a narration with ANNOUNCE or LONG2, you can record with higher clarity by using the equalizer to cut the bass range. Select an RDAC grade that matches the circumstances of use.

Procedure

2

Turn off the power of the AR-200R.

Set the SW 1-3 REC MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel.

Recording Audio

SW 2 SW 3 RDAC-Grade SW 1 OFF ANNOUNCE ON OFF LONG2 OFF ON OFF LONG1 OFF OFF OFF **STANDARD** ON OFF ON OFF OFF ON HIGH S-HIGH ON OFF ON

The different grade settings are shown in the following table.

MEMO

If the type of card does not provide the recording time you want, change the RDAC mode or RDAC grade setting to use less card capacity, then perform recording again.

3

Turn on the power of the AR-200R.

* Use a narrow-tipped object to set the MODE switches to ON or OFF.

RDAC-Mode (Signal Processing Format)(REC MODE SW 4, 5)

The RDAC mode is a type of digital data processing system for recording. On the AR-200R, you can select from among four modes.

			Sound quality	Amount of card memory consumed
LINEAR	:	16 bit PCM Recording	High ↑	Large
MODE3	:	About 2.5 times the recording time of Linear	r.	
MODE2	:	More than 2.5 times the recording time of Linear.		
MODE1	:	About 4 times the recording time of Linear.		Small

LINEAR enables recording at the highest sound quality, but uses the most space on the card. MODE1 uses up the least card space, and is suited to long recording times. Select an RDAC mode that matches the circumstances of use.

Procedure

1

Turn off the power of the AR-200R.

2

Set the SW 4 and 5 REC MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel.

The different grade settings are shown in the following table.

RDAC-Mode	SW 4	SW 5
MODE 1	OFF	OFF
MODE 2	ON	OFF
MODE 3	OFF	ON
LINEAR	ON	ON

3

Turn on the power of the AR-200R.

* Use a narrow-tipped object to set the MODE switches to ON or OFF.



What's RDAC?

RDAC (Roland Digital Audio Coding) is a proprietary audio recording standard from Roland.

It achieves high sound quality and also makes it possible to record for long times.

If You're Not Sure About Which Grade and Mode to Choose

The optimal grade and mode vary according to the usage conditions, including the connected equipment, recording source, sound quality, time, and playback system.

The factory default settings are RDAC-Grade: LONG1; and RDAC-Mode: MODE1.

First, try recording and playback with these settings. In most cases, this yields satisfactory sound quality.

Recording Type (Stereo/Mono)(REC MODE SW 6)

Select either stereo recording or mono recording.

Choosing mono recording gives you recording times that are twice as long as with stereo recording.

Procedure

1. Turn off the power of the AR-200R.

2. Set the SW 6 REC MODE switch on the AR-200R's bottom panel.

OFF: MONO

ON: STEREO

3. Turn on the power of the AR-200R.

* Use a narrow-tipped object to set the MODE switches to ON or OFF.

What is mono recording

In the case of mono recording, input the audio signal to the "MONO/L" input jack. When audio signals are input simultaneously to the "MONO/L" and "R" input jacks, L and R are mixed and recorded.

Line Thru Output

REC SW6: OFF (mono)

When audio signals are input to "MONO/L," output is from OUTPUT L and R. When audio signals are input to "R," output is from OUTPUT R only. When audio signals are input to both "MONO/L" and "R," solely the signals input to "MONO/L" are output from OUTPUT L, while the "MONO/L" and "R" signals are mixed and output from OUTPUT R.

REC SW6: ON (stereo)

Audio signals input to "MONO/L" are output from OUTPUT L, and audio signals input to "R" are output from OUTPUT R.

Procedure

Make the correct connections, then turn on the power switch.



Insert a formatted card into one of the slots.

2

Press the [▼] or [▲] button to select the number of the phrase to be recorded.

The non-recording phrase number in display is flashed.



- * *If you are re-recording over a previously recorded phrase, you should delete the phrase.* (p. 25)
- * You cannot change the phrase number after recording, so be sure to select the phrase number you want to record.



Hold down the STOP button and press the PLAY button to go into recording standby.

The PLAY indicator is flashed while the recording standby mode.



Input the sounds from the device connected to the input jacks, then use the input volume knob to adjust the recording level so that the MIDI/CLIP indicator does not light.

Nominal Input level:0 dBm

Maximum input level: +2 dBu

- * *If signals louder than* +2 *dBu are being input, rotate the input volume knob to the left of center.*
- * Press the STOP button and recording standby mode will end.

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" (P.9)

5

When you press the PLAY button, sounds are input to the input jacks, and recording begins.

* Even when the PLAY button is pressed, recording does not begin until the sound is at or above the base level (-36 dBu) (in trigger recording standby).

While recording is in progress, the PLAY indicator lights, and a dot flashes in the display.



* When the card becomes full, recording will stop automatically.



Press the Stop button to end recording.



Checking What You Recorded

After recording ends, you can play back the phrase by pressing the Play button.

Information Recorded on the Card

The AR-200R stores recorded audio and MIDI signals on the card.

Additionally, all settings data (such as MIDI channels and other information) is stored on the card (the information is not stored in the AR unit itself).

This means that you can change the settings simply by swapping cards.

The MEMORY FULL indicator tells how much recording time is left. The MEMORY FULL indicator light flashes when the recorded data reaches 90% of the card's capacity, then stays on when 100% capacity is reached.

Playback Using the Panel (Manual Playback)

Here is how to playback the phrase to check the recording.

The sound will be output from the Phones jack and from the output jacks.



Procedure



2

Insert a card containing recorded information into a slot.

Press the [▼] or [▲] button to select the number of the phrase to be played back.

* The non-recording phrase number in display is flashed.

3

Press the PLAY button and the phrase will playback.

During playback of the phrase, the Play indicator lights up. The dot in the display also lights up.



Dot lit up * Pressing the Stop button ends playback.

Deleting Phrases

You can delete unneeded phrases, either by deleting single phrase units or entire collections of phrases.

Deleting Single Phrases

1

Press the [\checkmark] or [\blacktriangle] button to select the number of the phrase to be deleted.



Hold down the STOP button for at least 2 seconds. A flashing "dEL" appears.





Press the PLAY button to execute deletion of the phrase.

* To stop the procedure, press the STOP button.

When you're finished deleting the phrase, the display indication changes.



Deleting All Phrases



2

After confirming that the card to be deleted is inserted in the card slot, hold down the STOP button for at least 2 seconds. A flashing "dEL" appears.

Press the [\blacktriangle] button, so you have the "ALL" displayed.





Press the PLAY button to execute deletion of the phrases.

* To stop the procedure, press the STOP button.

When you're finished deleting the phrase, the display indication changes.





Recording and Playing MIDI Data (MIDI Phrase)

What is a MIDI Phrase?

You can use the AR-200R for recording and playback of MIDI data. MIDI data recorded with the AR-200R are called "MIDI phrases."

MIDI phrases and audio phrases are treated identically as phrases.

You can take MIDI data recorded with a MIDI sequencer and record this to the AR-200R as MIDI phrases, using them as "MIDI data playback sent to sound generating modules for broadcast within buildings."

MIDI data is saved by the AR-200R as Format 0 SMFs (Standard MIDI Files). The MIDI Time Base is fixed at 192.

- * The AR-200R can only playback Format 0 SMF data.
- * Audio phrases and MIDI phrases cannot be recorded or played back simultaneously.
- * The capacity of cards used for MIDI phrases is affected not only by recording time, but by the size of the MIDI data in the MIDI phrases themselves. Please be aware that when you record MIDI phrases, the possible recording time for a single card varies according to the size of the MIDI data.

MEMO

Control of the unit by using MIDI signals is described in another chapter.

Please refer to **"Controlling the AR-200R with MIDI Signals** (MIDI Control)"(P.42).

Connecting External Devices



MEMO

This automatically changes to MIDI THRU during recording and in recording standby.

S

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" (P.9)

Procedure for Recording MIDI Phrases

Make the correct connections, then turn on the power switch.

13

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" (P.9)

- **1.** Insert a formatted card into one of the slots.
- Press the [▼] or [▲] button to select the number of the phrase to be recorded.
- * The non-recording phrase number in display is flashed.
- * *If you are re-recording over a previously recorded phrase, you should delete the phrase (p. 25).*
- * You cannot change the phrase number after recording, so be sure to select the phrase number you want to record.
- **3.** Hold down the STOP button and press the PLAY button to go into recording standby.

The PLAY indicator is flashed while the recording standby mode.



- **4.** Hold down the [▲] button for at least 2 seconds to switch to MIDI mode. The MIDI/CLIP indicator is lit.
- * Recording will begin when a System Real time message "Start" (FAH) is received from the connected MIDI device.
- **5.** After you press the PLAY button, recording begins when MIDI signals are input from the connected MIDI device.

While recording is in progress, the PLAY indicator lights, and a dot flashes in the display.



* When the card becomes full, recording will stop automatically.

MEMO

The MEMORY FULL indicator tells how much recording time is left. The MEMORY FULL indicator light flashes when the recorded data reaches 90% of the card's capacity, then stays on when 100% capacity is reached.

- 6. Press the Stop button to end recording.
- * Recording will also stop if a Stop signal is received from the connected MIDI device.

NOTE

- Some MIDI sequencers output MIDI sound generator setup messages (tone settings for each part, volume information, effects data, and so on) when a song is selected, and this may prevent MIDI messages from being recorded correctly when recording with the AR-200R begins. In such instances, start recording with the AR-200R first, then after this select and play back the song from the MIDI sequencer.
- In recording MIDI with the AR-200R, the recording tempo is set at 120 (tempo information is not stored).
- You cannot change the phrase number afterward, so be sure select the phrase number you want to record before you start recording.

HINT

Using MIDI Signals to Start and Stop Recording

With the AR-200R, you can do things such as have recording start upon reception of a start message from another MIDI device, as well as have a recording in progress be stopped upon reception of a stop message. During recording standby, recording starts when a System Real time start message (FAH) is received, and stops when a stop message (FCH) is received.

Furthermore, start (FAH) and stop (FCH) messages are transmitted when phrases are played back.



Procedure for Playing Back MIDI Phrases

Manual playback

- **1.** Insert a card containing recorded information into a slot.
- **2.** Press the / button to select the number of the phrase to be played back. The MIDI/CLIP indicator lights up when a MIDI phrase is selected.

- * The non-recording phrase number in display is flashed.
- **3.** Press the PLAY button and the phrase will playback.

While playback is in progress, the PLAY indicator lights, and a dot flashes in the display.

4. Press the Stop button to end playback.

Playback Using Control Input and Other Input

You can play back control input and other input in the same manner as you would with audio phrases.

You can use the control input and DC input screw terminals (CONT A) and the 25-pin D-sub-type control I/O connector (CONT B) on the AR-200R's rear panel to control the AR-200R from an external device.

This chapter explains how to connect external devices and make the settings for the AR-200R.

What Is No-voltage/Makecontact?

This is contact that makes starting possible simply by connecting two lines to the control input connectors and shorting their ends. This is a general-use method that lets you create start systems easily using only a switch and without any need for a power source, enabling easy use for a variety of applications.

You can control playback and recording with the AR-200R using On/Off signals from No-voltage/Make-contact input from an external source.

By connecting infrared sensors or switches, relays, and timers, or other external starting connectors to the AR-200R, you can use the unit in an even wider variety of applications.

The AR-200R can help simplify installation operations by making the starting-side contact hot and sharing the ground as the common connector.

IF

For more on the control input specifications, refer to "Control I/O Connector specifications" (p. 57) in the Appendices.

Important Note on Using the Control I/O Connector

The control I/O connector cannot be used to switch the power to the AR unit on or off.

NOTE

When making connections to the ports, be careful not to lose the removed screws. Place the screws out of the reach of small children. If a screw is accidentally swallowed, immediately consult a physician.

Types of Control Input Playback

There are four types of control input playback: Playback by Card Data (p. 28), Direct Playback (Reverse Priority) (p. 30), Binary Playback (p. 31), and Interval Playback (p. 34).

* You cannot use more than one type of playback at the same time.

Operational Specifications for Control Input Playback

	When new control signals are input during playback of a phrase	When control signals are input continuously
Direct Playback (Nomal)	A phrase in progress is stopped, and playback of another specified phrase is begun only when the control signal being input is of a higher priority than that of the phrase currently being played back	Repeated
Direct Playback (Reverse Priority)	Playback stopped, followed by playback of the specified phrase	Repeated
Interval Playback	Playback stopped, followed by playback of the specified phrase	Repeated
Binary Playback	Disabled	Repeated

Types of Control Input Recording

The AR-200R features one type of control input recording, **"Binary Rec"** (p. 34).

Playback By Card Data

Cards Created on the AR-3000R/ 3000/2000

Playback will use the settings (playback method) recorded in the card. For more information, please refer to the owner's manuals for each device.

* Some functions are not available. (p. 55)

Card made on the AR-200R/ 200S/200/100

Playback mode is available Direct Playback(Normal). Phrases 1 through 9 are assigned to the control I/O connector Port Nos. 1 through 9.

Direct playback(Normal playback)

A phrase is played back when a control signal is input directly to the terminal with the number to which the phrase is assigned. Up to 9 phrases can be played back.Assign Phrases 1 through 9 beforehand to Port Nos. 1 through 9, respectively.

This makes it very convenient when you want to specify a desired phrase directly using a switch, relay, sensor, or other such means.



Connectors Used for Direct Play (Control I/O Connector)

"1–9": Inputting a control signal directly to the terminal with the number corresponding to the phrase starts playback of the phrase.

"10 (Stop)": This stops phrase playback.

In addition to the connectors just described, shorting "11/12 (GND)" (ground) connectors enables "On."



* Control Input and DC Input Terminal (CONTROL A) "1, 2" are connected in parallel with Control I/O Connector (Control B) "1, 2."

B

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" (p. 9)

Basic Operation of Direct Playback (Normal Playback)



Playback:

Input a control signal to a Port, 1–9.

 \rightarrow The phrase assigned to the Port is played back. stopping:

Input a control signal to Port 10 (STOP).

 \rightarrow Playback of the phrase is stopped.

Order of Priority

The control input pins have a priority order. The priority order is as follows:



When a new high-priority control signal is input during phrase playback, playback of the current phrase is stopped, and playback of the specified phrase begins.



* If a control signal has a lower priority than that of the phrase currently being played back, the specified phrase is not played back.

Playback is repeated while the control signal is continuously input.



AR-200R Settings

Selecting the Control Input Mode

Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel to select "PLAYBACK BY CARD DATA" from the control input modes (PLAYBACK BY CARD DATA/DIRECT PLAYBACK/BINARY PLAYBACK/INTERVAL PLAYBACK).

- * You cannot achieve control input playback merely by connecting a device to the port. Be sure to set the control input mode and match the method used for connecting to the connectors.
- * If you are using a card created with the AR-3000/3000R/2000, or if you are editing a card's Control Input Playback mode with ARE-3000, set the control input playback mode to Direct Playback (normal playback).

Procedure for Setting the Control Input Mode

- **1.** Turn off the power of the AR-200R.
- **2.** Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel as shown below.

SW1: OFF

SW2: OFF

- **3.** Turn on the power of the AR-200R.
- * Use a pointed object to change the ON/OFF settings of the MODE switches.

Assigning Phrases to the Terminals

Assign phrases 1 through 9 to Port Nos. 1 through 9.

Settings in Effect When a Card Is Formatted

Port No.	1	2	3	4	5	•	•	•	9
Phrase	0001	0002	0003	0004	0005	•	•	•	0009

Playing Back Phrases Assigned to the Connectors (Direct Playback)

What Is Direct Playback (Reverse Priority)?/Use and Applications

By inputting control signals directly to Port Nos. 1 through 9, you can play back the phrases assigned to those numbers. Up to 9 phrases can be played back. Assign phrases 1 through 9 beforehand to Port Nos. 1 through 9.

This is very convenient when you want to specify a desired phrase directly using a switch, relay, sensor, or other such means.



Connecting External Devices

Connectors Used for Direct Play (Last-In) (Control I/O Connector)

1 through 9: Inputting a control signal directly to the connector with the number corresponding to the phrase starts playback of the phrase.

"10 (STOP)": Stop phrase playback.

In addition to the connectors just described, shorting the "11/12 (GND)" (ground) connectors enables "On."



* Control Input and DC Input Terminal (CONTROL A) "1, 2" are connected in parallel with Control I/O Connector (Control B) "1, 2."



"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" $\left(p,\,9\right)$

Operational Specifications for Direct Playback (Last-In)

Basic Operation of Direct Playback (Reverse Priority)



Playback:

Input control signals to Port Nos. 1 through 9.

 \rightarrow This plays the phrase assigned to the connector. stopping:

Input control signals to Port No. 10 (STOP).

 \rightarrow This stops playback of the phrase.



"Operational Specifications for Control Input Playback" (p. 28)

Priority Order

The most recently input control signal is given priority in playback.

If a new and different control signal is input during playback of a phrase, playback of the current phrase is stopped, and playback of the specified phrase then begins.



Playback is repeated while the control signal is continuously input.



AR-200R Settings

Selecting the Control Input Mode

Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel to select "DIRECT PLAYBACK" from the control input modes (PLAYBACK BY CARD DATA/DIRECT PLAYBACK/ BINARY PLAYBACK/INTERVAL PLAYBACK).

You cannot achieve control input playback merely by connecting a device to the port. Be sure to set the control input mode and match the method used for connecting to the connectors.

Procedure for Setting the Control Input Mode

- **1.** Turn off the power of the AR-200R.
- **2.** Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel as shown below.

SW1: ON SW2: OFF

- **3.** Turn on the power of the AR-200R.
- * Use a pointed object to change the ON/OFF settings of the MODE switches.

Assigning Phrases to the Terminals

Assign phrases 1 through 9 to Port Nos. 1 through 9.

Settings in Effect When a Card Is Formatted

Port No.	1	2	3	4	5	•	•	•	9
Phrase	0001	0002	0003	0004	0005	•	•	•	0009

Specifying Phrases in Binary Notation (Binary Playback)

What Is Binary Playback?/Use and Applications

By inputting binary (Base 2) signals to Port Nos. 1 through 8 to select a phrase and inputting a start message to the START terminal, you can then play back the selected phrase. A maximum of 250 phrases can be selected and played back with this method.

This allows you to specify 250 phrases with control signals (from a switch or other ON/OFF signal device), without having to use computers or other complicated equipment.



START SIGNAL
Phrase 112
PLAY

- * To conduct Binary Playback, you will need to obtain a control device capable of generating binary signals.
- * Input of binary specifications should be completed in no more than 50 milliseconds.

Connecting External Devices

Connectors Used in Binary Playback

"1–8": Phrases are specified in binary format using combinations of 0 (Off) and 1 (On).

"9 (START)": Start phrase playback.

"10 (STOP)": Stop phrase playback.

In addition to the connectors just described, shorting the 11/ 12 (GND) (Ground) connectors enables "On."



R

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" $\left(p,\,9\right)$

MEMO

Even without connecting to all eight connectors used for making the binary specifications, you can still conduct Binary Playback. The number of phrases that can be specified is determined by the formula "two to the nth power minus one" (with "n" being the number of connectors used). Example:

Using three timers or other such devices capable of outputting the necessary signals gives two to the third power minus one (i.e., 8 - 1 = 7), meaning you can specify the seven phrases 001 through 007.

However, start signals feature other special requirements.

Operational Specifications of Binary Playback

Basic Operation of Binary Playback

Binary Specification 00 Port No.18)01
START Port	ŗ
	0001

Playback:

Specify the phrases using combinations of 0 (Off) and 1 (On) signals to Port Nos. 1 through 8, and Port Nos. 11 and 12, and input a control signal to the Port No. 9 (START).

 \rightarrow This plays back the specified phrase.

Stopping:

Input a control signal to Port No. 10 (STOP).

 \rightarrow This stops playback of the phrase.

The basic operation of Binary Playback is shown below.



Binary specified phrases are played back repeatedly.

Playback is repeated while the start signal is continuously input.

You can begin playback of phrases by specifying phrases in binary with the start signal continuously being input.

When the START connector control signal switches to Off, the current phrase finishes, and then playback is stopped. No action results when a new start signal is input while a phrase is being played back.

AR-200R Settings

Selecting the Control Input Mode

Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel to select "BINARY PLAYBACK" from the control input modes (PLAYBACK BY CARD DATA/DIRECT PLAYBACK/ BINARY PLAYBACK/INTERVAL PLAYBACK).

* You cannot achieve control input playback merely by connecting a device to the port. Be sure to set the control input mode and match the method used for connecting to the connectors.

Procedure for Setting the Control Input Mode

- 1. Turn off the power of the AR-200R.
- **2.** Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel as shown below.

SW1: OFF

SW2: ON

- **3.** Turn on the power of the AR-200R.
- * Use a pointed object to change the ON/OFF settings of the MODE switches.

To Specify Phrases with Binary Signals

Example: Specifying Phrase 0112 (Phrase #: 0112)

 Convert the phrase number to a binary signal number. "0" (Off)





"Phrase Number / Binary Signal chart" (p. 33)

The phrase number "0012" becomes the binary signal "01110000."

With the above step, Phrase No. 0112 is converted to:

Port No. \rightarrow 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 INPUT Signal \rightarrow 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0

Phrase Number (Binary)

NOTE

Input of binary specifications should be completed in no more than 50 milliseconds.

Phrase Number / Binary Signal chart

Phrase No.	Binary (Port 87654321)								
	、 ,		, ,		· · · ·		·		、
001	00000001	051	00110011	101	01100101	151	10010111	201	11001001
002	00000010	052	00110100	102	01100110	152	10011000	202	11001010
003	00000011	053	00110101	103	01100111	153	10011001	203	11001011
004	00000100	054	00110110	104	01101000	154	10011010	204	11001100
005	00000101	055	00110111	105	01101001	155	10011011	205	11001101
006	00000110	056	00111000	106	01101010	156	10011100	206	11001110
007	00000111	057	00111001	107	01101011	157	10011101	207	11001111
008	00001000	058	00111010	108	01101100	158	10011110	208	11010000
009	00001001	059	00111011	109	01101101	159	10011111	209	11010001
010	00001010	060	00111100	110	01101110	160	10100000	210	11010010
011	00001011	061	00111101	111	01101111	161	10100001	211	11010011
012	00001100	062	00111110	112	01110000	162	10100010	212	11010100
013	00001101	063	00111111	113	01110001	163	10100011	213	11010101
014	00001110	064	01000000	114	01110010	164	10100100	214	11010110
015	00001111	065	01000001	115	01110011	165	10100101	215	11010111
016	00010000	066	01000010	116	01110100	166	10100110	216	11011000
017	00010001	067	01000011	117	01110101	167	10100111	217	11011001
018	00010010	068	01000100	118	01110110	168	10101000	218	11011010
019	00010011	069	01000101	119	01110111	169	10101001	219	11011011
020	00010100	070	01000110	120	01111000	170	10101010	220	11011100
021	00010101	071	01000111	121	01111001	171	10101011	221	11011101
022	00010110	072	01001000	122	01111010	172	10101100	222	11011110
023	00010111	073	01001001	123	01111011	173	10101101	223	11011111
024	00011000	074	01001010	124	01111100	174	10101110	224	11100000
025	00011001	075	01001011	125	01111101	175	10101111	225	11100001
026	00011010	076	01001100	126	01111110	176	10110000	226	11100010
027	00011011	077	01001101	127	01111111	177	10110001	227	11100011
028	00011100	078	01001110	128	1000000	178	10110010	228	11100100
029	00011101	079	01001111	129	10000001	179	10110011	229	11100101
030	00011110	080	01010000	130	10000010	180	10110100	230	11100110
031	00011111	081	01010001	131	10000011	181	10110101	231	11100111
032	00100000	082	01010010	132	10000100	182	10110110	232	11101000
033	00100001	083	01010011	133	10000101	183	10110111	233	11101001
034	00100010	084	01010100	134	10000110	184	10111000	234	11101010
035	00100011	085	01010101	135	10000111	185	10111001	235	11101011
036	00100100	086	01010110	136	10001000	186	10111010	236	11101100
037	00100101	087	01010111	137	10001001	187	10111011	237	11101101
038	00100110	088	01011000	138	10001010	188	10111100	238	11101110
039	00100111	089	01011001	139	10001011	189	10111101	239	11101111
040	00101000	090	01011010	140	10001100	190	10111110	240	11110000
041	00101001	091	01011011	141	10001101	191	10111111	241	11110001
042	00101010	092	01011100	142	10001110	192	11000000	242	11110010
043	00101011	093	01011101	143	10001111	193	11000001	243	11110011
044	00101100	094	01011110	144	10010000	194 105	11000010	244 245	11110100
045	00101101	095	01011111	145	10010001	195	11000011	245	11110101
046	00101110	096	01100000	146	10010010	196 107	11000100	246	11110110
047	00101111	097	01100001	147	10010011	197	11000101	247	11110111
048	00110000	098	01100010	148	10010100	198 100	11000110	248	11111000
049	00110001	099	01100011	149	10010101	199 200	11000111	249 250	11111001
050	00110010	100	01100100	150	10010110	200	11001000	250	11111010

Repeated Playback of Phrases (Interval Playback)

The specified phrase will be played back at fixed intervals. Make each of the terminal settings beforehand for the playback interval and phrases to be played back.

When making settings in Interval Playback mode, assign Phrases 1 through 9 to the control output connectors 1 through 9.

The playback interval settings are shown below.

<u>Port No.</u>	Playback Interval
1	1 second
2	5 seconds
3	10 seconds
4	15 seconds
5	30 seconds
6	1 minute
7	5 minutes
8	15 minutes
9	30 minutes

Operational Specifications of Interval Playback

Basic Operation of Interval Playback



[Interval time used for phrases]

Playback:

Input control signals to the control Input/output connectors No. 1 through 9.

 \rightarrow Results in the repeated play of the phrase assigned to the terminal.

stopping:

Input a control signal to Port No. 10 (STOP).

 \rightarrow This stops playback of the phrase.

AR-200R Settings

Selecting the Control Input Mode

Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel to select "INTERVAL PLAYBACK" from the control input

modes (PLAYBACK BY CARD DATA/DIRECT PLAYBACK/BINARY PLAYBACK/INTERVAL PLAYBACK).

You cannot achieve control input playback merely by connecting a device to the port. Be sure to set the control input mode and match the method used for connecting to the connectors.

Procedure for Setting the Control Input Mode

- **1.** Turn off the power of the AR-200R.
- **2.** Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel as shown below.

SW1: ON

SW2: ON

- **3.** Turn on the power of the AR-200R.
- * Use a pointed object to change the ON/OFF settings of the MODE switches.

Controlling Recording with the Control Connectors (Binary Rec)

What is Binary Rec/Use and Applications

You can specify phrases by inputting binary (base 2) signals to the Port Nos. 1 through 8, and perform record, playback, and erase functions by inputting control signals to Port Nos. 9 and 10. A total of 250 phrases can be specified with control signals (On/Off). This is convenient when you want to control recording from an external control device.



[Signal sent to Port Nos. 9 and 10]

- * To conduct binary control, you need to provide a control device that can generate binary signals.
- * Input of binary specifications should be completed in no more than 50 milliseconds.

Connecting Equipment

Connectors Used in Binary Rec

1–8: Phrases are specified in binary format using combinations of 0 (Off) and 1 (On).

9, 10: Combinations of 0 (Off) and 1 (On) are used to specify record, erase, and playback.

15–18 (CONT OUT): Outputs signals for confirming the presence or absence of phrases.

In addition to the connectors just described, shorting Ports 11 and 12 (Ground) enables "On."



B

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" $\left(p,\,9\right)$

Operational Specifications for Binary Rec

Phrases are specified by combinations of signals of 0 (Off) and 1 (On) to the Port Nos. 1 through 8 as well as Port Nos. 11 and 12, and record, playback, and erase functions are specified with combinations of control signals of 0 (Off) and 1 (On) to Port Nos. 9 and 10.

Presence or Absence of Phrases

If there is a binary-specified phrase that has already been recorded, a signal is output from the CONT OUT connector (Port No. 15). If there is an empty phrase, no signal is output.

* During Binary Rec, the CONT OUT connector functions as a connector for signals confirming the presence or absence of phrases. Note that this differs from the normal function of CONT OUT.



Recording

9:0 (Off)

10: 1 (On)

→ While control signals are being input, the specified phrase is recorded. When input of the control signal stops, recording then ends.

Timing Chart (Rec)



- * Recording does not start if there is a binary-specified phrase that has already been recorded (the recording instruction is disabled). When recording, either specify an empty phrase or delete the existing phrase before recording the new one. Additionally, in Binary Rec, since a make signal is output from the CONT OUT connector when a specified phrase has already been recorded, this allows confirmation using a connected external control device.
- * When headphones are being used, no Busy Out signal is output.
- * When you're using the Binary Recording Mode, recording takes place immediately, without entering trigger recording standby.

Playback

9:1 (On)

10:0 (Off)

→ The specified phrase is played back. Even when control signals are input continuously, the phrase is played back one time only and then ends.



- * Playback does not begin if the binary-specified phrase is empty (the playback instruction is disabled). When playing back, specify a phrase that has already been recorded.
- * When headphones are being used, no Busy Out signal is output.

Erase

9:1 (On)

10:1 (On)

- → First, when ON is input to Port No. 10, and then ON is input to Port No. 9, erasure of the specified phrase begins. Erasure ends when the signal from the CONT-OUT connector confirming the presence or absence of the phrase changes to OFF.
- * Erasure does not begin if the binary-specified phrase is empty (the erase instruction is disabled). When erasing, specify a phrase that has already been recorded.



*Play phrase output delay time is dependent on the card used

AR-200R Settings

Switching the Binary Recording Mode

Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel to select the BINARY REC mode.

You cannot achieve control input playback merely by connecting a device to the port. Be sure to set the control input mode and match the method used for connecting to the connectors.

Procedure for Setting the Control Input Mode

- **1.** Turn off the power of the AR-200R.
- **2.** Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel as shown below.

SW6: ON

- **3.** Turn on the power of the AR-200R.
- * Use a pointed object to change the ON/OFF settings of the MODE switches.
To Specify Phrases with Binary Signals

NOTE

Note that the way phrases are specified in Binary Rec differs from that used in Binary Playback.

Example: Binary specification of Phrase 112 (Phrase #: 112)

Convert the phrase number to a binary signal number.

```
"0" (Off)
"1": (On)
```

The phrase number "0001" is specified in the binary notation as "00000000," and as shown in the Phrase Number/Binary Signal Correspondence Table below, each subsequent specification is shifted by one.



R.

"Phrase Number / Binary Signal chart" (p. 33)

The phrase number "112" becomes the binary signal "01101111."

NOTE

Input of binary specifications should be completed in no more than 50 milliseconds.

Controlling Another Device with the AR-200R (Control Output Connectors)

You can use the screw-type control input and DC input terminals (CONT A) and the 25-pin D-sub-type control I/O connector (CONT B) on the AR-200R's rear panel to control an external device from the AR-200R.

The AR-200R outputs two kinds of control signals, Busy Out and Control Out.

This chapter explains how to connect external devices and make the settings for the AR-200R.

B

For examples describing the use of the control input and DC input terminals and the control I/O connector, refer to the **"Examples of Usage and Connection for the AR-200R"** (p. 12).

F

For more on the control input specifications, refer to **"Control I/O Connector specifications"** (p. 57) in the Appendices.

Important Note on Using the Control Input and Output Ports



When making connections to the ports, be careful not to lose the removed screws. Place the screws out of the reach of small children. If a screw is accidentally swallowed, immediately consult a physician.

Starting Another Device (Busy Out)

What is the Busy Out Signal?/ Connecting Devices

Busy Out is a continuous signal output from the BUSY OUT connector during playback (as well as during recording and recording standby) of audio phrases, MIDI phrases, pattern phrases, and song phrases.

This signal can be used to start amplifiers and other external devices in sync with phrase playback.

The Busy Out specifications are no-voltage/make-contact, with a make-contact time of 1 second and a contact capacity of a maximum of DC 30 V at 3 A.

Port Nos. 13 and 17 have Make-contact during output.



- * You cannot set the delay time or repeats with the AR-200R alone. Make these settings with the AR-3000/3000R or using ARE-3000. Additionally, you can use the AR-3000/3000R or ARE-3000 to set whether or not a Busy Out signal is output during the delay time or the repeat interval. For more detailed information, refer to the AR-3000/3000R or ARE-3000 Owner's Manual.
- * The Busy Out signal is not output when headphones are used.



"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" $\left(p,\,9\right)$

Output of Busy Out Signals In Dual Mono Mode (p. 47)

When in Dual Mono mode, the Busy Out signal of the left channel is output from the BUSY OUT connector, and the right channel Busy Out signal is output from the CONT OUT connector. "Dual Mono Mode" (p. 47)

Controlling Another Device (Control Out)

AR-200R Settings

* Settings for these parameters cannot be made with the AR-200R. Only phrases set on the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000 are effective. For detailed information, please refer to the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000 user's manual.

What is the Control Out Signal?/ Connecting Devices

The Control Out signal is output for a duration of one second from the CONT OUT connector after playback of audio phrases, MIDI phrases, pattern phrases, and song phrases. This signal can be used to start amplifiers and other external

devices in sync with phrase playback.

You can set the time that is to pass after phrase playback before output is made to anything from 0 seconds to 59 minutes 59 seconds.

Settings are made in phrase units.

The Control Out specifications are no-voltage/make-contact, with a make-contact time of 1 second and a contact capacity of a maximum of DC 30 V at 3 A.

Port Nos. 15 and 18 have Make-contact during output.



Note that if playback of a phrase in progress is cut off, no Control Out signal is output.



B

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" (p. 9)

Output of Control Out Signals In Dual Mono Mode (p. 47)

Note that Control Out signals are not output in Dual Mono Mode (the Control Out settings are not effective). In such instances, if the Busy Out output settings have been made, then the Busy Out signal of the left channel is output from the BUSY OUT connector, and right channel's Busy Out signal is output from the CONT OUT connector.



AUDIO RECORDER **AR-200R**

Applications Guide (For Use in Conjunction with the AR-3000R/3000)

Controlling the AR-200R with MIDI Signals (MIDI Control)

What is MIDI Control?/What You Can Do Using MIDI Control

MIDI is an acronym for "Musical Instrument Digital Interface," and is a standard by which electronic musical Instruments and computers can exchange musical data. You can connect any device conforming to the MIDI standard with a MIDI cable, and then transmit performance data and control the device's operation and settings.

- You can record and play back MIDI signals from an external MIDI device in the same manner as with audio phrases.
- You can use MIDI signals from an external MIDI device as control signals for controlling playback of audio and MIDI phrases.
- You can use received MMC signals to start and stop recording and playback of audio phrases.

Moreover, by using an optional AR-3000R/3000 to create and edit phrases, the following is also possible. For detailed information, please refer to the AR-3000R/3000 user's manual.

• You can use MMC and MTC signals from an external MIDI device for remote control and synchronized operation.

What is MMC (MIDI Machine Control)?

MMC refers to MIDI messages that were devised in accord with certain agreements as to how to facilitate the centralized control of a multiple number of recording devices using one device. In addition to playback, stopping, and fast forwarding of songs, you can also select tracks for recording and carry out other operations merely by operating the one device which functions as the master. Use of MMC signals requires that the other devices be capable of remote operation using MMC signals.

The AR-200R can work as a remote device, starting and stopping recording and playback of audio phrases when MMC signals are received.

However, there is no connection between MMC master (operating device = sending side) and slave (receiving side) and MTC synchronization master and slave.

What is MTC (MIDI time code)?

MTC consists of MIDI messages that were devised to allow MIDI devices to synchronize correctly with professional-use tape recorders, video equipment, and the like. It differs from MIDI Clock, displaying the absolute time. The master device transmits the current absolute time (in hours/minutes/ seconds/frames from the start), and the time of the slave device is advanced to conform with it. Use of MMC signals requires that the other device is capable of synchronization using MTC. Refer to the "**MIDI Implementation Chart**" (p. 64) for easy confirmation of the MIDI messages that can be sent and received by the AR-200R along with the more detailed MIDI specifications in "**MIDI Implementation**" (p. 58).

When a Card Set as an MTC Slave with an AR-3000/3000R or with ARE-3000 Is Used with the AR-200R

Playback Procedure

Carry out Steps 1–3 in the procedure described on p. 24. When you then start playback of the MTC master device, the phrase is played back.

Recording Procedure

Carry out Steps 1–4 in the recording procedure described on p. 22, then press the [PLAY] button. Recording begins when you start recording with the MTC master device.

* The unit does not go into recording standby mode, recording starts immediately.

Playback of Phrases Using MIDI Signals

MIDI signals from an external MIDI device can be used as control signals in order to play back audio and MIDI phrases. Phrase playback can be controlled by the different types of MIDI messages, including Note On/Off, Note On Velocity, Panpot, and Expression.

- * MIDI phrases cannot be played back simultaneously with audio phrases or other MIDI phrases.
- * Phrases for which RDAC-Mode is set to MODE2 cannot be synchronized with MTC.

Connecting External Devices

When Playing Back Audio Phrases Using MIDI Signals



When Playing Back MIDI Phrases Using MIDI Signals



Assignment of Phrases to Note Numbers (MIDI Note Map)

When a Note On message is sent, the phrase corresponding to the note number is played back. You can specify all phrases by using a Program Change.

Settings in Effect When a Card Is Formatted

Program	Change	1
---------	--------	---

Note No.	Phrase
C-1	A0001
C#-1	A0002
D-1	A0003
:	:
G9	A0128

MIDI Note Map (Phrase Assignments from Program Changes and Note Numbers)

Program Change	Note No.	Phrase No.
1	C-1 – G9	You can assign 128 phrases however you like
21	C-1 – D#7	A0001 – A0100
22	C-1 – D#7	A0101 – A0200
23	C-1 – D#7	A0201 – A0300
24	C-1 – D#7	A0301 – A0400
25	C-1 – D#7	A0401 – A0500
26	C-1 – D#7	A0501 – A0600
27	C-1 – D#7	A0601 – A0700
28	C-1 – D#7	A0701 – A0800
29	C-1 – D#7	A0801 – A0900
30	C-1 – D#7	A0901 – A1000
2	C-1 – D#7	A0001 – A0100
3	C-1 – D#7	A0101 – A0200
4	C-1 – D#7	A0201 – A0300
5	C-1 – D#7	A0301 – A0400
6	C-1 – D#7	A0401 – A0500
128	C-1 – G9	The phrase being played back is stopped.

< Program Change1>



< Program Change 21–30, 71–80, 2–11> C-1 C0 C1 C2 C3 C4 C5 C6 C7 D#7



* By transmitting program change 128, you can then send a Note On message for a note number to interrupt a currently playing phrase.

AR-200R Settings

MIDI Receive channel Settings (MIDI channel)

This sets the MIDI receive channel. MIDI allows you to independently control two or more devices over a single MIDI cable. For example, when the MIDI channel for the sending device is set to "1," then unless the MIDI channel of the receiving device (here, the AR-200R) is also set to "1," the MIDI message is not transmitted.

Off: MIDI messages will not playback phrases.

1-16: Only the MIDI messages on the selected channel are received and played back.

All: MIDI messages of any channel will playback phrases.

Procedure for Making the MIDI Receive Channel Settings

1. While holding down the PLAY button, insert the card into the card slot.

The MIDI indicator will blink, and the display will indicate the receive channel.

- Press the [▼]/[▲] dial to select the MIDI Receive channel (OFF/1-16/ALL).
- **3.** Press the PLAY button to set the specified MIDI receive channel.

The MIDI indicator lights, and the phrase number is displayed.

• If you press the STOP button, the MIDI receive channel setting will be canceled.

MIDI Control Signals That Can Be Received (Receive Messages)

If you use a card whose settings have been made on the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000, the following MIDI message can be received by the AR-200R.

Note On Velocity:	Volume level when playback of the	
	phrase starts	
Panpot (CC10):	Changes the positioning of the sound in	
	the left and right channels	
Expression (CC11):	Changes the master volume	

B

For more a detailed explanation of MIDI, refer to **"MIDI Implementation"** and **"MIDI Implementation Chart"** (p. 58– p. 65).

MIDI Note Out

Moreover, by using an optional AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000 to create and edit phrases, the following function are also possible.

For detailed information, please refer to the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000 user's manual.

If MIDI Note Out is set to "ON," then when an audio phrase is played back, the MIDI Note Number On/Off signals set in "**MIDI Note Map**" (p. 43) are output from the MIDI OUT connector.

In this case, if two or more note numbers have been assigned to that playback phrase, only the lowest note number will be transmitted.

The MIDI signals are output through the channel set through the MIDI Receive channel.

If the MIDI Receive channel is set to:

"OFF": There is no output

"1-16": Only the MIDI signals in the selected channel are input and output

"ALL": Output is through Channel 1

- * If you are using Note messages to control two or more AR-200R units, set the MIDI Note Trigger setting of the slave AR-200R units to "Trig." "Trigger" is selected when the card is formatted. However, this setting cannot be changed on the AR-200R.
- * Even when playing back MIDI phrases, Note Number On/Off signals are not output.

Synchronized Recording and Playback with Multiple AR Units (AR-LINK)

What is AR-LINK?/What You Can Do Using AR-LINK

The AR-LINK connector is a transmission connector used for creating completely synchronized recording and playback with multiple AR-3000R/3000/200R/200 devices. The connectors feature special leads for commands and master clock, allowing synchronization with sampling frequency precision.

With one AR-3000R/3000 as the master, you can then link up to 31 other AR-3000R/3000s and/or AR-200R/200s (for a total of 32 devices) to get 64-channel multitrack recording and playback.

However, this system allows recording and playback only of audio phrases (MIDI phrases cannot be handled).

* Synchronization with the AR-LINK is not available when only AR-200R/200s are used.

Synchronized Audio Phrase Playback with AR-LINK Signals Example of Connecting to an External Device

Use MIDI to send a hard disk recorder's operation data to the master AR-3000R/3000. Connecting four slave AR-200R/ 200s in a chain then allows you to get 10-channel multitrack recording.





"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" (p. 9)

Use MIDI to send signals from an imaging device to the master AR-3000R/3000. You can chain 31 slave AR-200R/200s to synchronize images and phrases.



R

"Important Notes on Making Connections and Switching the Power On and Off" $\left(p,\,9\right)$

AR-200R Settings

Selecting the AR-200R's Operation (AR-LINK SLAVE)

Set the AR-200R so as to enable synchronization with AR-LINK.

The AR-200R can only be set to AR-LINK slave.

Settings Procedure

- **1.** Turn off the power of the AR-200R.
- Set the MODE switches on the AR-200R's bottom panel as shown below.
 SW4: ON
- **3.** Turn on the power of the AR-200R. The SLAVE indicator on the front panel lights up.
- * Use a pointed object to change the ON/OFF settings of the MODE switches.
- * For more detailed information about synchronized operation with AR-LINK, refer to the AR-3000R/3000 Owner's Manual.

Other Useful Functions During Phrase Playback

Moreover, by using an optional AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000 to create and edit phrases, you can also use the following functions.

For detailed information, please refer to the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000 user's manual.

Playing Data for Two Units on the Left and Right (Dual Mono Mode)

The Dual Mono mode is a feature for playing different mono audio phrases independently on the left and right channels.

By outputting odd-numbered phrases (0001, 0003, ...) from the left channel and even-numbered phrases (0002, 0004, ...) from the right channel, you can play back two units' worth of phrases using only the one device.

You can also play back separate phrases on the left and right channels either simultaneously, or shifted.



* You cannot make settings for this parameter on the AR-200R. Furthermore, it is effective only with phrases whose settings have been made on the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000. For detailed information, please refer to the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000 user's manual.

MEMO

To Users of the AR-2000/100 (Legacy Models)

On the AR-2000/100 (legacy models), this "Dual Mono Mode" is the function called "Channel Playback Mode." When using them, please try to keep in mind that the two functions are identical.

Line Out (Thru) Setting During Phrase Playback

You can take audio from Line In, mix it during phrase playback, and mixed it from Line Out (or Line Thru).





This is useful when you want to do things like taking music from Line In and layering it with narration phrases as background music.

You can also make the Line In sound fade out or in.



Line throughput is possible only for signals connected to the Line In jacks.

Line Thru Output Specifications

The following output specifications apply, depending on the Line Thru settings.



LINE THRU

When fade-out or fade-in settings have been made



Adjusting the Sound Quality During Audio Phrase Playback (EQ–Equalizer)

You can adjust the quality of the sound during audio phrase playback with two-band equalization.

Playing Back Phrases in the Order They Are Selected (Program Playback)

You can have the group of preset phrases play back in the order they are selected by inputting a control signal to the START port.

With program playback, you can register up to a maximum of 100 phrases in each of the five patterns of Programs 1 through 5.

Since the order and duration of the phrases is predetermined, this is a convenient option when you have only one contact, such as a timer or switch, with which to trigger this action.

Count Playback Procedure

- Using an AR-3000/3000R or ARE-3000, set the card to Count Playback (you cannot set Count Playback with the AR-200R alone).
- **2.** With the power turned off, set MODE switches 1 and 2 on the bottom panel of the AR-200R to OFF (use a pointed object to switch the setting of a MODE switch to ON or OFF).
- **3.** Turn on the power to the AR-200R, then insert the card set to Count Playback in the AR-200R.
- Count playback is controlled with the control input connector.
- Shorting START (Terminal 9) and COM (Terminal 11 or 12) plays back phrases in a specified sequence.
- Shorting INC (Terminal 1) and COM (Terminal 11 or 12) advances playback to subsequent phrases in the sequence.
- Shorting DEC (Terminal 3) and COM (Terminal 11 or 12) plays the phrases in the reverse sequence.
- Shorting EXCHANGE (Terminal 5) and COM (Terminal 11 or 12) switches the phrase groups.
- Shorting STOP (Terminal 9) and COM (Terminal 11 or 12) stops playback of the phrases.

AUDIO RECORDER AR-200R



Troubleshooting

About recording

Recording does not start

- In trigger recording, recording starts automatically when the audio input is of a higher level than the trigger level (lever for starting recording). Adjust the input level so that recording is allowed to start.
 - \rightarrow "Trigger recording standby." $(p.\ 23)$

About playback

Phrases do not play back correctly

• Has a computer been used to format the card? Be sure to format cards on an AR Series device.

Control Input Playback (Direct/Binary) does not work as intended

- Make sure the MODE switches' settings (Direct/Binary) are selected correctly. You cannot achieve control input playback merely by connecting a device to the port. Be sure to set the control input mode and match the method used for connecting to the connectors.
 - \rightarrow "MODE SW Settings" (p. 56)

Phrases in Direct Playback cannot be selected as intended

• When the card is formatted, phrase assignments for Port Nos. 1 through 9 are such that Phrase 0001 is assigned to Port No. 1, Phrase 0002 to Port No. 1, and so on up to Phrase 0001, which is assigned to Port No. 9. Check to make sure that the phrases are properly selected.

Phrases play repeatedly in Direct Playback

- Check to make sure that "INTERVAL PLAYBACK" is not selected with the MODE switch settings.
 - \rightarrow "MODE SW Settings" $(p.\ 56)$

The AR-LINK function does not work as intended

• In the AR-LINK settings, is "AR-LINK Mode" set to "Off?"

When using AR-LINK, set this to "Slave" to match your usage conditions. In addition, check the device connections (OUT, IN) for the AR-LINK connector.

About playback and recording of MIDI phrases

MIDI phrases cannot be recorded correctly

• Some MIDI sequencers output MIDI sound generator setup messages (tone settings for each part, volume information, effects data, etc.) when a song is selected, and this may prevent MIDI messages from being recorded correctly when recording with the AR-200R begins. In such instances, start recording with the AR-200R first, then after this select and play back the song from the MIDI sequencer.

MIDI data cannot be recorded

- When recording MIDI data, switch to MIDI Recording mode.
 - \rightarrow "Recording and Playing MIDI Data (MIDI Phrase)" $(p.\,26)$

MIDI phrases are not played back

- Is the MIDI Receive channel set to "Off?"
 - \rightarrow "MIDI Receive channel Settings (MIDI channel)" $$(p. \, 44)$$

About MIDI Control Playback

Phrases cannot be played back as intended in MIDI Control Playback

- When a card is formatted, Program Change 1 is set to C-1: 0001-G9:0128. Program Changes 21-30 have Phrases 0001-1000 assigned to them. Phrases 001-500 are assigned to Program Changes 21-30 for compatibility with the AR-2000. Confirm that the phrase you want to play back is correctly specified.
- * By transmitting program change 128, you can then send a Note On message for a note number to interrupt a currently playing phrase.

Others

No sound

- Reconfirm that the power to the AR-200R or connected device is on.
- Reconfirm that the volume control on the AR-200R or connected device is turned up.
- Reconfirm that there are no shorts in any connector cables.

There is a scraping sound coming from the AR-200R

- In situations such as when control signals are input continuously, the movement of the internal relays may make a scraping sound, but this does not indicate any malfunction. To prevent overuse and failure of the relay, you may also switch to Interval Playback in order to have the relay move only once.
 - $\rightarrow \text{``Interval Playback''} \ (p. \ 34)$

The volume of the device connected to the output connector is low

• Are you using a connector cable that introduces or adds resistance? Use a cable that does not add resistance (such as Roland's PCS Series).

Card made on the AR-3000R/ 3000

Operation cannot be synchronized

• Are the MTC "Sync Source" and "Sync Out" set correctly?

When using the AR-200R as a slave, check to make sure the settings are correctly made for the conditions.

- If using MTC, are both devices set to the same MTC type?
- Check the AR-3000R/3000 to confirm that the MIDI device ID settings are correct.

Phrases are not played back (PLAY indicator is flashing)

• Is the MTC "Sync Source" set to "MTC?"

When not synchronizing playback with MTC and using the AR-200R as a slave, set "Sync Source" on the AR-3000R/3000 to "Internal."

Pattern phrases and song phrases are not played back as intended

• Phrases composed from pattern phrases or song phrases will not be played back properly unless they are saved as actual phrases (if the composed phrase is not saved, the next phrase is sought and then played back). Check the AR-3000R/3000 to confirm whether or not the composite phrase has been saved.

The start of phrase playback is delayed when playback is controlled from an external device

• Has the "Delay Time" been set for the phrase?

Try playing back the phrase by pressing the AR-200R's PLAY button (manual operation). If the start of playback is delayed, check the AR-3000R/3000 to confirm whether or not the delay time has been set.

If the playback is correct when you press the AR-200R's PLAY button, check the control signals being sent from the external control device, connections and so on once more.

Error messages

If an incorrect operation is attempted or execution is not possible, an error message will appear in the display. Note the message that appears, and take the appropriate action.

E - 0 3

- Situation: It is possible that the data in the CF card or the CF card itself has been damaged.
- Action: Delete all phrases (p. 25). If delete card is not possible, or if the same message appears after the card has been delete card, it may be that the CF card is malfunctioning. Use a different CF card.

E - 0 5

Situation: No more data can be recorded in the card.

Action: Either delete unnecessary phrases (p. 25), or use a different card.

E r 0 6

Situation:	Either the phrase data is damaged, or the
	AR-200R is not able to handle the phrase.
Action:	Check the phrase for which the message was
	displayed.

E - 0 5

Situation:	A large amount of MIDI data was received in a
	short time, and could not be processed.
A stion.	Change the way in which MIDI data is being

Action: Change the way in which MIDI data is being transmitted.

Er IO

- Situation: Once an Active Sensing message was received, 300 msec elapsed without any message being received.
- Action: Check the MIDI cable connect or turn off.

Er I I

Situation:	The CF card is not formatted for use with the
	AR-200R.
Action:	Format the CF card.

Er 12

Situation:	There is no phrase corresponding to the		
	specified phrase.		
Action:	Select a saved phrase or record a new phrase.		



Situation:Data was not written to or read from the card
in time.Action:Change the RDAC-Grade, RDAC-Mode, or
other recording conditions to reduce the
amount of data.

Er + 4

Situation:	Card protect is set to ON, so data cannot be
	written to the card.
Action:	Set card protect to OFF.

5 r 1 5

	-
Situation:	The AR-200R gets hot.
Action:	Ventilate well to avoid overheating, and keep the unit cool.
E - 2	0
Situation:	The MIDI output is set to MIDI THRU, so no MIDI data is output.
Action:	Set the MIDI output to OUT on the AR-3000/ 3000R or with ARE-3000.

E r 2

Situation: Action: Checksum error found in received MIDI data. Check the transmission status and the MIDI data.

52

Card-specific Audio Recording Time Chart

The following table shows recording times available for cards formatted for the AR-200R.

- * Recording times listed are for mono recording. Recording times are halved when data is recorded in stereo.
- * These times are for when 1 phrase is recorded continuously, and are provided for your reference when recording. The recording time will depend on the combination of the grade settings of each phrase recorded in each memory card.

128 MB		RDAC-Mode			
		H-LINEAR	LINEAR	MODE3/MODE2*	MODE1
RDAC-	S-HIGH	14:48	22:12	59:14	1:28:51
Grade	HIGH	16:06	24:10	1:04:27	1:36:41
	STANDARD	22:12	33:19	1:28:51	2:13:17
	LONG1	32:13	48:20	2:08:54	3:13:22
	LONG2	44:25	1:06:38	2:57:43	4:26:35
	ANNOUNCE	1:28:51	2:13:17	5:55:27	8:53:11

512 MB		RDAC-Mode			
		H-LINEAR	LINEAR	MODE3/MODE2*	MODE1
RDAC-	S-HIGH	58:33	1:27:50	3:54:15	5:51:22
Grade	HIGH	1:03:43	1:35:34	4:14:52	6:22:18
	STANDARD	1:27:50	2:11:46	5:51:22	8:47:04
	LONG1	2:07:26	3:11:09	8:29:44	12:44:36
	LONG2	2:55:41	4:23:32	11:42:45	17:34:08
	ANNOUNCE	5:51:22	8:47:04	23:25:31	35:08:16

1 GB		RDAC-Mode				
		H-LINEAR	LINEAR	MODE3/MODE2*	MODE1	
RDAC-	S-HIGH	1:56:11	2:54:17	7:44:47	11:37:11	
Grade	HIGH	2:06:25	3:09:38	8:25:41	12:38:32	
	STANDARD	2:54:17	4:21:26	11:37:11	17:25:46	
	LONG1	4:12:50	6:19:16	16:51:22	25:17:04	
	LONG2	5:48:35	8:42:53	23:14:22	34:51:33	
	ANNOUNCE	11:37:11	17:25:46	46:28:44	69:43:06	

* Minimum recording times are listed only for MODE2. Depending on conditions, you may be able to attain recording times longer than listed here.

Recorded Phrase Data

When a piece of Phrase data recorded by the AR-200R, the set-tings of data on the card will be as follows.

If you will be using the card on the AR-3000R/3000, refer to this list.

Phrase settings

Playback Volume:100

Delay time: OFF

Playback point:

• start:

• End:

00h00m00s00f00f0sf The real time of the phrase

Repeat playback:OFF **Loop playback:** OFF

fade:

- fade in: OFF
- fade out: OFF

Control output: OFF

MIDI playback time: 120

Phrase name: MESSAGE1

(MESSAGE + Phrase number)

Settings When a Card Is Formatted

When a card is formatted by the AR-200R, the settings of the card will be as follows.

If you will be using the card on the AR-3000R/3000, refer to this list.

Recording settings

- Recording jack select:LINE-IN
- RDAC-GRADE: STANDARD
- Recording type:
- Trigger recording: OFF
- MIDI Time base: 192 (MIDI phrase only)

Stereo

Phrase messages

Playback Volume:100

Delay time: 00s00f

Playback point:

- start: 00h00m00s00f0sf
- End: The real time of the phrase

Repeat playback:OFF

Loop playback:OFF

fade:

fade in: OFF
fade out: OFF
Control output:OFF
MIDI playback tempo:120
Phrase name: MESSAGE1

(MESSAGE + Phrase number)

Card Edit

Card protect: OFF card name: MESSAGE

Control input settings control input MODE:DIRECT Direct playback method:Normal • phrase assign Port No. Phrase 1 A0001 2 A0002 3 A0003 4 A0004 5 A0005 6 A0006 7 A0007 8 A0008 9 A0009 10 A0010 11 A0011 12 A0012 13 A0013 14 A0014 15 A0015 16 A0016 **Program Playback** Program 1 played back in order Phrase A0001 No. 1: .|. No.100: Phrase A0100

Programs 2 through 5 played back in order

Phrase ----

 \downarrow

No.100: Phrase ----

Binary playback

No. 1:

- Level: ON
- Edge: OFF

Binary Rec

• Phrase specify: Binary1

MIDI settings

MIDI OUT: OUT (MIDI OUT/THRU)

MIDI note map: C-1: Phrase A0001 ↓

G9: PhraseA0128

MIDI note out:OFF

MIDI channel:OFF

MIDI note trigger: Trigger

- MIDI receive messages: OFF
- Note on Velocity: OFF
- Panpot: OFF
- Expression: OFF

DEVICE ID: 1

MTC

- Sync source: Internal
- Sync out: OFF
- MTC type: 30
- MTC Error level: 5

MMC Mode

RS-232C Settings

Data transmission speed setting:9600

AR-LINK Setting

AR-LINK Mode:OFF

System settings Dual MONO Mode:OFF(Stereo)

Line thru setting

- Line thru select: ON
- Line thru volume level:0
- Fade out: 00.5
- Fade in: 00.5

EQ

• Switch: OFF

Volume thru: OFf

Busy out

- Delay time: ON
- Phrase playback: ON
- Repeat playback: OFF
- Display Extinguished:OFF

ETC. settings

Recording phrase:250

AR-3000R/3000 settings that can be used

The following AR-3000R/3000 settings can be used by the AR-200R.

Refer to this list if you will be using a card created by the AR-3000R/3000.

Settings Data With the CardWith the AR-200R

SettingSetting

Recording Settingsx 0 Phrase settings(*1)o o (*2) Direct playback settingo o (*4) Program Playback Settingso x Binary Playback Settingso (*3)o (*3) Binary Rec Settingso o (*5) Dual Mono Mode Settingso x MIDI notes settingo х MIDI receive channel settingoo MIDI note triggero х

MIDI Device ID settingo x

Recording phraseo

(*1) The phrase name will not be displayed on the AR-200R.

0

- (*2) Repeat playback setting of phrase settings will be ignored at Interval Playback.
- (*3) For binary playback, up to 250 phrases can be played back.
- (*4) With Direct Playback, only Reverse Priority is available.
- (*5) Only Binary Recording (equivalent to Binary Rec Binary2) is possible.

MODE SW Settings

MODE Switch Specifications

In addition to the REC MODE switches (p. 19–21), the AR-200R's bottom panel also houses the MODE switches. Various applications are possible by changing the settings of the MODE switches.

Each switch is ON when in the upward position, and OFF when in the downward position.

When the AR-200R is shipped from the factory, all switches will be OFF.

* Use a pointed object to change the ON/OFF settings of the MODE switches.



Switch Protect Setting (SW 5)

This setting prevents malfunctioning caused when buttons are pressed by mistake. Setting Switch Protect to "ON" disables any action from the buttons on the front panel if they are pressed.

OFF:	OFF
ON:	ON

Binary Rec Settings (SW 6)

When conducting Binary Rec, set this to "ON."OFF:OFFON:ON

Playback Mode Settings (SW 1, 2)

The AR-200R's playback modes are set by means of varying combinations of ON and OFF settings for SW 1 and 2.

PLAYBACK MODE	SW 1	SW 2
Playback By Card Data	OFF	OFF
Direct Playback (Last-In)	ON	OFF
Binary Playback	OFF	ON
Interval Playback	ON	ON

Types of Control Input Playback (p. 28)

Output Level Settings (SW 3)

Specifies the output level. Set this in accordance with the specifications for the device to which the playback is being output.

OFF:	-10dBV
ON:	+4dBu

AR-LINK Settings (SW 4)

When using AR-LINK, set this to "SLAVE." OFF: OFF ON: SLAVE

Control I/O Connector specifications



Control Input

Trigger Signal Format:	On, Off (Open, Close),		
	Pulse width: 20 msec or more		
Contact capacity	DC 24 V, 0.1 A or more		
Input:	Photocoupler		

Control Output

Signal system: Contact capacity: No-voltage make-contact DC 30 V, 3 A

- * Control Input and DC Input Terminal (CONT A) "1,2" are connected in parallel with Control I/O Connector (CONT B) "1,2."
- * When using Program Playback on a CF card created by the AR-3000R/3000, use connectors 1 (INC), 3 (DEC), 5 (EXCHANGE), 9 (START), and 10 (STOP)
- * Do not make any connection to NC pins, since this will cause faulty operation.

DC power supply

- Power can be supplied to the AR-200R from an external power supply unit (DC power supply) as well as from the AC adaptor.
- To supply power from an external power supply unit (DC power), use the Control Input and DC Input Terminal (CONT A) or the Control I/O Connector (CONT B) DC IN and GND pins.

Power supply specifications:

DC +9—24 V, 1200 mA

- The DC OUT pin of the Control I/O Connector (CONT B) can be used as power supply for a sensor, etc.
- * Never short a power supply pin (21, 24, 25) to the GND pin, since this will damage the unit.
- * When using the DC OUT, be careful not to exceed the maximum rating (100 mA).

NOTE

For reasons of safety, do not connect the DC IN + pin of the Control Input and DC Input Terminal (CONT A) to metal parts such as the chassis or the Control I/O Connector (CONT B).



Do not supply electrical power simultaneously to multiple connectors or terminals; doing so may result in damage to the unit.

MIDI Implementation

Model: AR-200R (Audio Recorder) Date: July.1,2006 Version: 1.00

1. Receive data (Media Player Section) ■Channel Voice Message

Note Off

Status	Secor	<u>id Third</u>		
8nH	kkH	vvH		
9nH	kkH	00H		
n = MIDI Channel No. :		0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)		
kk = Note No. :		00H - 7FH (0 - 127)		
vv = Velocity :		00H - 7FH (1 - 127)		

* This stops playback of the phrase for the corresponding note number. (For more on the corresponding phrases, refer to the Note On parameter.)

- * This is ignored when "Trigger" is selected for MIDI Trigger Mode.
- * The Note Off Velocity value is ignored.
- * Data is not received if the MIDI Receive channel setting is OFF. When set to 1-16, data is received only on the selected channel. When set to ALL, data is received on all channels.

Note On

<u>Status</u>	Second	<u>Third</u>		
9nH	kkH	vvH		
n = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)				
kk = Note No. : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)				

vv = Velocity : 01H - 7FH (1 - 127)

- * This plays back the phrase for the corresponding note number.
- * With Program Change 1 (normally turning the power on), all note numbers (128 numbers) are received. Corresponding phrase numbers may be selected freely.
- * With Program Changes 21-30, only Note Numbers 00H-63H (0-99) are received. The phrase numbers correspond to 1-1000 on Card A. Phrase assignments cannot be changed.
- * With Program Changes 2-6, only Note Numbers 00H-63H (0-99) are received. The phrase numbers correspond to 1-500 on Card A respectively. Phrase assignments (AR-2000 compatible) cannot be changed.
- * With Program 128, playback of the phrase in progress is stopped, regardless of the note number.
- * Data is not received if the MIDI Receive channel setting is "OFF." When set to 1-16, data is received only on the selected channel. When set to ALL, data is received on all channels.
- * The Note On Velocity value changes the playback master volume.
- * The Note On Velocity value is ignored in Dual Mono mode and MIDI playback.
- * The Note On Velocity value is ignored when Note On Velocity is set to "Off."

Control Change

O Panpot (Controller number 10)

StatusSecondThirdBnHOAHvvH

n = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16) vv = Panpot : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)

(0-64-127) (0-64-127)

default value = 40H(64)

- * This is adjustable in 127 steps, with 0 being full left, 64 center, and 127 full right.
- * When Panpot is off, this is not received.
- * When MIDI playback is conducted in Dual Mono mode, this is not received.
- * Data is not received if the MIDI Receive channel setting is "OFF." When set to 1-16, data is received only on the selected channel. When set to ALL, data is received on all channels.

O Expression (Controller number 11)

status	Second	Third			
BnH	0BH	vvH			
n = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)					
$vv = Expression \cdot 00H - 7EH (0 - 127)$					

- default value = 7FH (127)
- * This changes the volume level during playback of a phrase.
- * When Expression is off, this is not received.
- * When MIDI playback is conducted in Dual Mono mode, this is not received.
- * Data is not received if the MIDI Receive channel setting is "OFF." When set to 1-16, data is received only on the selected channel. When set to ALL, data is received on all channels.

Program Change

	j-
<u>Status</u>	Second
CnH	ppH
n = MIDI Channel	No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)
pp = Program num	nber : 00H - 05H (prog.1 - prog.6)
	: 14H - 1DH (prog.21 - prog.11)
	: 46H - 4FHH (prog.71- prog.80)
	: 7FH (prog.128)

- * This switches the MIDI note map used for the phrase assignments.
- * The change goes into effect with the first new Note On after the Program Change is received. This has no effect on phrases being played before the Program Change is received.
- * Data is not received if the MIDI Receive channel setting is OFF. When set to 1-16, data is received only on the selected channel. When set to ALL, data is received on all channels.

System Common Message

• Quarter Frame Messages

- * Data is received when Sync Source is set to "MTC." When the Quarter Frame message is received, operation proceeds with the start of the song synchronized to "00h00m00s00f00" with the "MTC Offset" and the "Delay Time" added.
- * This acts upon the currently selected audio phrase.
- * MIDI phrases and pattern phrases are ignored when Dual Mono mode is selected.

Status	Second
F1H	mmH (= 0nnndddd)
nnn = Message type	: 0 = Frame count LS nibble
	1 = Frame count MS nibble
	2 = Seconds count LS nibble
	3 = Seconds count MS nibble
	4 = Minutes count LS nibble
	5 = Minutes count MS nibble
	6 = Hours count LS nibble
	7 = Hours count MS nibble
dddd = 4 bit nibble	data : 0h - FH (0 - 15)
Bit Field is assigned	as follws.
Frame Count	хххууууу
	xxx Reserved (000)
	yyyyy Frame No.(0-29)
Seconds Count	ххуууууу
	xx Reserved (00)
	yyyyyy Seconds (0-59)
Minutes Count	ххуууууу
	xx Reserved (00)
	yyyyyy Minutes (0-59)
Hours Count	xyyzzzzz
	x Reserved (0)
	yy Time Code type
	0 = 24 Frames / Sec
	1 = 25 Frames / Sec
	2 = 30 Frames / Sec (Drop Frame)
	3 = 30 Frames / Sec (Non Drop Frame
	zzzzz Hours (0-23)

System Exclusive Message

Status	Data Bytes	Status
F0H	iiH, ddH,, eeH	F7H
FOH	:System Exclusive Messa	ge status
iiH ID Number	an ID number (manufac	turer ID) to indicate the manufacturer whos

iiH ID Number	:an ID number (manufacturer	ID) to	indicate	the	manufacturer	whose
Exclusive message the	nis is. Roland's m	anufacturer IE) is 41F	ł.			

ID numbers 7EH and 7FH are extensions of the MIDI standaerd; Universal Non-Real time Messages (7EH) and Universal Real time Messages (7FH).

dd,..., ee = Data : 00H-7FH (0-127) F7H : EOX (End of Exc

```
EOX (End of Exclusive Message)
```

The system Exclusive Messages recived by the AR-200R are; Data Set (DT1). Regarding the Data Set (DT1), please refer to "exclusive Communication."

MIDI Implementation

MIDI Time Code

O Full Messages

- * Data is received when Sync Source is set to "MTC." When the Quarter Frame message is received, operation proceeds with the start of the song synchronized to "00h00m00s00f00" with the "MTC Offset" and the "Delay Time" added.
- * This acts upon the currently selected audio phrase.
- * MIDI phrases and pattern phrases are ignored when Dual Mono mode is selected.

<u>Status</u> F0H	<u>Data Bytes</u> 7FH, dev, 01H, 01H, 06H, 01H, hrH, mnH, scH, frH	<u>Status</u> F7H
Byte	Description	

Byte	Description	
F0H	Status of Exclusive Message	
7FH	Universal System Exclusive Message Real time Header	
dev	device ID (or 7FH)	
01H	sub-ID#1 (MIDI Tim	ne Code)
01H	sub-ID#1 (Full Mess	ages)
06H	number of bytes	
01H	[TARGET] sub com	mand
hrH	Hours Count	xyyzzzz
		x Reserved (0)
		yy Time Code type
		0 = 24 Frames / Sec
		1 = 25 Frames / Sec
		2 = 30 Frames / Sec (Drop Frame)
		3 = 30 Frames / Sec (Non Drop Frame
		zzzzz Hours (0-23)
mnH	Minutes Count	ххуууууу
		xx Reserved (00)
		yyyyyy Minutes (0-59)
scH	Seconds Count	ххуууууу
		xx Reserved (00)
		yyyyyy Seconds (0-59)
frH	Frame Count	хххууууу
		xxx Reserved (000)
		yyyyy Frame No.(0-29)
F7H	EOX (End of Exclusion	ive)

• MIDI Machine Control (MMC)

- * This is Received when the MMC mode is set to "SLAVE."
- * This acts upon the currently selected phrase.

OSTOP (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	Data Bytes	<u>Status</u>
F0H	7FH, dev, 06H, 01H	F7H
<u>Byte</u>	Description	
F0H	Status of Exclusive Mess	sage
7FH	Universal System Exclus	sive Message Real time Header
dev	device ID (or 7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Messa	ge
01H	STOP (MCS)	
F7H	EOX (End of Exclusive !	Message)

 Playback is stopped immediately when this command is received if the device ID matches, or if 7FH is received.

O PLAY (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	<u>Data Bytes</u>	Status
F0H	7FH, dev, 06H, 02H	F7H
<u>Byte</u>	Description	
F0H	Status of Exclusive Messa	nge
7FH	Universal System Exclusi	ve Message Real time Header
dev	device ID (or 7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Messag	e
02H	PLAY (MCS)	
F7H	EOX (End of Exclusive M	lessage)

 Playback is started immediately when this command is received if the device ID matches, or if 7FH is received.

O DEFERRED PLAY (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	Data Bytes	Status
F0H	7FH, dev, 06H, 03H	F7H
Byte	Description	
F0H	Status of Exclusive Messa	ge
7FH	Universal System Exclusiv	ve Message Real time Header
dev	device ID (or 7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Message	
03H	DEFERRED PLAY (MCS)	
F7H	EOX (End of Exclusive Me	essage)

 Playback is started immediately when this command is received if the device ID matches, or if 7FH is received.

O RECORD STROBE (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	<u>Data Bytes</u>	Status
F0H	7FH, dev, 06H, 06H	F7H
<u>Byte</u>	Description	
F0H	Status of Exclusive Messa	ge
7FH	Universal System Exclusiv	ve Message Real time Header
dev	device ID (or 7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Message	2
06H	RECORD STROBE (MCS)	
F7H	EOX (End of Exclusive Me	essage)

 Recording of the phrase begins when this command is received if the device ID matches, or if 7FH is received.

 If MIDI signal recording is in effect, this command is ignored (MIDI cannot be recorded with MMC).

O RECORD EXIT (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	<u>Data Bytes</u>	Status
F0H	7FH, dev, 06H, 07H	F7H
<u>Byte</u>	Description	
F0H	Status of Exclusive Messag	e
7FH	Universal System Exclusive	e Message Real time Header
dev	device ID (or 7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Message	
06H	RECORD STROBE (MCS)	
F7H	EOX (End of Exclusive Me	ssage)

* Recording is stopped immediately when this command is received if the device ID matches, or if 7FH is received.

* If MIDI signal recording is in effect, this command is ignored (MIDI cannot be recorded with MMC).

Status

O LOCATE (MCP)

Format 2 - LOCATE [TARGET]
Status Data Bytes
For First a solution of the second second

F0H	7FH, dev, 06H, 44H, 06H, F7H
	01H, hrH, mnH, scH, frH, ffH
<u>Byte</u>	Description
F0H	Status of Exclusive Message
7FH	Universal System Exclusive Message Realtime Header
dev	device ID (or 7FH)
06H	MMC Command Message
44H	LOCATE(MCP)
06H	Number of Bytes
01H	[TARGET] sub command
hrH	Standard time with Sub Frame
mnH	
scH	
frH	
ffH	
F7H	EOX (End of Exclusive Message)

- * If the device ID matches, or if 7FH is received, then when this command is received, the location of the time code specified in the command data is located.
- * MIDI phrases and pattern phrases are ignored when Dual Mono mode is selected.

Transmitted data (Media Player Section) Transmitted messages while a phrase is being played back

The stored MIDI message are transmitted When the MIDI phrase will playback after OUT is set in the MIDI OUT.

In this case, AR-200R is not transmitted MIDI messages which are received.

2.2 Transmitted message which are received.

When THRU is set in the MIDI OUT, AR-200R transmits message which are received.

2.3 Transmitted message which are produced.

When OUT is set in the MIDI OUT, AR-200R transmits the following produced messages.

Channel Voice Message

Note Off

 Status
 Second
 Third

 8nH
 kkH
 40H

 n = MIDI Channel No.: 0H -- FH (ch.1--ch.16)
 kk = Note No.: 00H--7FH (0--127)

- After the MIDI Phrase is stopped, AR-200R produces Note off message for received notes remains on.
- * When Note On is sent at the start of an audio performance, the same note number as that of the Note On is transmitted. For more information about sending notes, refer to the Note On section below.

Note ON

 Status
 Second
 Third

 9nH
 kkH
 7FH

 n = MIDI Channel No.: 0H--FH (ch.1--ch.16)
 14

 bk
 Nit Nit 0
 127

kk = Note No.: 00H--7FH (0--127)

- * At the start of the audio phrase performance, the note number defined in the MIDI note map is sent.In this instance, if multiple note numbers are selected in the phrase, only the lowest note number is transmitted.
- * There is no transmission when the Note Send setting is set to "OFF" (Note Send settings are available only with the AR-3000R/3000 or ARE-3000).
- * Data is not output if the MIDI Receive channel setting is "OFF." When set to 1-16, data is transmitted only on the selected channel. When set to ALL, data is transmitted on Channel 1
- * There is no transmission during playback of MIDI phrases.

Control Change

O Hold1 OFF

<u>Status</u>	Second	Third
BnH	40H	00H

n = MIDI Channel No.: 0H--FH (ch.1--ch.16)

 After the MIDI Phrase is stopped, AR-200R produces Note off message for received notes remains on.

Channel Mode Message

 All Note Off (Controller No. 1 2 3) 		
Status	Second	<u>Third</u>

BnH	7BH	00H
n = MIDI char	nel No.: 0HFH (ch.1ch.16)

Transmitted message while a phrase is being played back.

2.4 Recognized message for sync

- System Realtime Message
- Timing Clock

<u>status</u> F8H

* Transmitted message while a phrase is being played back.

Start

<u>status</u> FAH

Stop

<u>status</u> FCH

System Common Message

Quarter Frame

- * This is transmitted when Sync Out is set to "MTC." The time count transmitted is the time with the start of the song set to "00h00m00s00f00" with the "MTC Offset" and the "Delay Time" added.
- * MIDI phrases and pattern phrases are not transmitted when Dual Mono mode is selected.

 status
 second

 F1H
 mmH (= 0nnndddd)

Regarding the Quarter Frame, please refer to "Receive data (Media Player Section) ~Quarter Frame~."

System Exclusive Message

MIDI Time Code

O Full Message

- * This is transmitted when Sync Out is set to "MTC" and the location of the phrase is moved. The time count transmitted is the time with the start of the song set to "00h00m00s00f00," and the "MTC Offset" and the "Delay Time" added.
- $^{\ast}\,$ MIDI phrases and pattern phrases are not transmitted when Dual Mono mode is selected.
- * Device ID = 7FH

Sta

FOI

atus	Data Bytes	<u>Status</u>
Н	7FH, dev, 01H, 01H	F7H
	hrH, mnH, scH, frH	

Regarding the MIDI Time Code, please refer to "Receive data (Media Player Section) ~MIDI Time Code~."

MIDI Machine Control (MMC)

* Data is transmitted when MMC mode is set to "MASTER."

O STOP (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	Data Bytes	Status	
F0H	7FH, 7FH, 06H, 01H	F7H	
<u>Byte</u>	Description		
F0H	Status of System Exclusiv	ve Message	
7FH	Universal System Exclusive Message Real time Header		
7FH	device ID (7FH)		
06H	MMC Command Messag	je	
01H	STOP (MCS)		
F7H EOX (End of System Exclusive Message)			
* When playing of a phrase is stopped, a STOP message is transmitted.			

O DEFERRED PLAY (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	Data Bytes	Status
F0H	7FH, 7FH, 06H, 01H	F7H
<u>Byte</u>	Description	
F0H	Status of System Excl	usive Message
7FH	Universal System Exe	clusive Message Real time Header
7FH	device ID (7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Me	ssage
03H	DEFERRED PLAY (N	1CS)
F7H	EOX (End of System	Exclusive Message)
* 111 (CT	1 DEEDDE	

* When "START" is pressed, a DEFERRED PLAY message is transmitted.

O RECORD STROBE (MCS)

<u>Status</u>	Data Bytes	Status
F0H 7FH, 7FH, 06H	, 07H	F7H
<u>Byte</u>	Description	
F0H Status of Syster	n Exclusive Message	
7FH	Universal System Exclusiv	ve Message Real time Header
7FH	device ID (7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Message	<u>ə</u>
06H	RECORD STROBE (MCS)	
F7H	EOX (End of System Exclu	usive Message)

* When recording of a phrase begins, a RECORD STROBE message is transmitted.

O RECORD EXIT (MCS)

	· · ·	
Status	<u>Data Bytes</u>	Status
F0H	7FH, 7FH, 06H, 07H	F7H
<u>Byte</u>	Description	
F0H	Status of System Exclusive	Message
7FH	Universal System Exclusive	e Message Real time Header
7FH	device ID (7FH)	
06H	MMC Command Message	
07H	RECORD EXIT	
F7H	EOX (End of System Exclus	sive Message)

* When recording of a phrase is stopped, a RECORD EXIT message is transmitted

O LOCATE (MCP)

format2 - LOCATE [TARGET]			
<u>Status</u>	<u>Data Bytes</u>	Status	
F0H	7FH, 7FH, 06H, 44H, 06H	F7H	
	01H, hrH, mnH, scH, frH, f	ffH	
<u>Byte</u>	Description		
F0H	Status of System Exclusive	Message	
7FH	Universal System Exclusive	e Message Real time Header	
7FH	device ID (7FH)		
06H	MMC Command Message		
44H	LOCATE (MCP)		
06H	Number of byte		
01H	[TARGET] sub command		
hrH	Standard time with Sub Fra	ame	
mnH			
scH			
frH			
ffH			
E7LI	EOV (End of System Evolution	civo Moccago)	

F7H EOX (End of System Exclusive Message)

* When the location is moved, a LOCATE message is transmitted.

* MIDI phrases and pattern phrases are not transmitted when Dual Mono mode is selected.

3. Receive data (MIDI Recorder Section) 3.1 Message memorized during recording

Channel Voice Message

Note Off					
Status	Secor	nd	<u>Third</u>		
8nH	kkH		vvH		
9nH	kkH		00H		
n = MIDI Channel N	Jo. :	0H - FH (ch.1	- ch.16)		
kk = Note No. :		00H - 7FH (0 -	· 127)		
vv = Velocity :		00H - 7FH (1 ·	· 127)		

Note On

 $\begin{array}{ccc} Second & Third \\ 9nH & kkH & vvH \\ n = MIDI \ Channel \ No.: 0H - FH \ (ch.1 - ch.16) \\ kk = Note \ No.: 00H - 7FH \ (0 - 127) \\ vv = Velocity: 01H - 7FH \ (1 - 127) \end{array}$

• Polyphonic Key Pressure

 Status
 Second
 Third

 AnH
 kkH
 vvH

 n = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)
 kk = Note No. : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)

 vv = value : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)

Control Change

 status
 Second
 Third

 BnH
 kkH
 vvH

 n = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)
 kk = Controller No. : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)

 vv = value : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)

• Program Change

 Status
 Second
 Third

 CnH
 ppH
 vvH

 n = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)
 pp = Program No. : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)

Channel Pressure

 Status
 Second

 BnH
 kkH

 n = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)

 vv = value : 00H - 7FH (0 - 127)

• Pitch Bend Change

StatusSecondEnHIIHn = MIDI Channel No. : 0H - FH (ch.1 - ch.16)

Channel Mode Message All Sound Off

• Reset All Controller

 Status
 Second
 Third

 BnH
 78H
 00H

 n = MIDI channel No. : 0H -FH (ch.1 --ch 16)

Local On / Off

 Status
 Second
 Third

 BnH
 7AH
 vvH

 n = MIDI channel No. : 0H -FH (ch.1 --ch 16)
 vv
 vv = value : 00H, 7FH (OFF, ON)

MONO

Status	Second	Third	
BnH	7EH	mmH	
n = MIDI channnel No. : 0H -FH (ch.1ch 16)			
mm = mono numbe	r : 00H - 10H (0 - 16)		
4 1971			

* The same processing will be carried out as when All Notes Off is received.

• POLY

 Status
 Second
 Third

 BnH
 7EH
 00H

 n = MIDI channel No. : 0H -FH (ch.1 --ch 16)
 mm = mono number : 00H - FH (0 - 16)

* The same processing will be carried out as when All Notes Off is received.

System Exclusive Message

<u>Status</u>	<u>Data Bytes</u>	Status	
F0H	iiH, ddH,, eeH	F7H	
FOH	:System Exclusive Messag	e status	
iiH ID Number	an ID number (manufactu	rrer ID) to indicate the manufacturer whose	
	Exclusive message this is. Roland's manufacturer ID is 41H.		
	ID numbers 7EH and 7FH are extensions of the MIDI standard;		
	Universal Non-real time Messages (7EH) and Universal Real time		
	Messages (7FH).		
dd,, ee = Data :	00H-7FH (0-127)		
F7H :	EOX (End of Exclusive Message)		

3.2 Message not memorized during recording

Channel Mode Message

All Note Off

<u>Status</u>	<u>Second</u>	Third	
BnH	78H	00H	
n = MIDI channel No. : 0H -FH (ch.1ch 16)			
* Note Off is generated for any note not set to OFF, and this note off is stored.			

• OMNI OFF

Status	Second	Third	
BnH	78H	00H	
n = MIDI channel	No. : 0H -FH (ch	.1ch 16)	

* The same processing will be carried out as when All Notes Off is received.

• OMNI ON

vv = value : 00H, 7FH (OFF, ON)

* The same processing will be carried out as when All Notes Off is received.

3.3 Recognized message for remote control

System Real time Message

Start

<u>status</u> F8H

* Not received when recording mode is not "Standby".

Continue

<u>status</u> FBH

* Not received when recording mode is not "Standby".

* The same processing will be carried out as when Start is received.

Stop

<u>status</u> FCH

* Not received when recording mode is not "record".

3.4 Messages received for detecting trouble in MIDI connection.

System Realtime message

Active Sensing

<u>Status</u> FEH

When Active Sensing is received, the unit will begin monitoring the intervals of all further messages. While monitoring, if the interval between messages exceeds 400 ms, the same processing will be carried out as when All Sounds Off, All Notes Off and Reset All Controllers are received, and message interval monitoring will be halted.

4. Transmit data (MIDI Recorder Section)

When AR-200R is in MIDI Recorder mode, MIDI Messages is not transmitted.

5. Exclusive Communication

Exclusive message model IDs that can be used on the AR-200R is OOH, 38H. The Device Id can be set to 00H to 1FH. Only received when AR-200R is in Media Player Section.

• Data Set 1 DT1 (12H)

Byte	Description
F0H	Status of System Exclusive Message
41H	Universal System Exclusive Message Real time Header
dev	device ID (dev : 00H1FH)
mdl	Model ID (mdl : 00H, 38H)
12H	Command ID (DT1)
aaH	address MSB
:	:
ddH	Address LSB
eeH	Data
:	:
llH	Data
sum	Check Sum
F7H	EOX (End of System Exclusive Message)

5.1 Parameter Address Map

This map indicates address, size, data (range), Parameter, Description, and default Value of parameters which can be transferred using "Data Set1(DT1)."

All the numbers of address, size, Data, and default Value are indicated in 7-bit Hexadecimal-form.

(AR-200R Model ID=00H,38H)

Address Block Map

An outlined address map of the Exclusive Communication is as follows;

OExclusive Address Table Phrase Select

Address(H)	SIZE(H)	DATA(H)	Parameter	Description
======================================	00 00 02	00 - 07 00 - 7f	Phrase Number Phrase Number Phrase Number	upper 4bits lower 7bits
<u>Phrase numb</u> A0001 - A100		<u>DATA(H)</u> 00 00 - 07 67		
* Only received n	acket data			

* Only received packet data.

* When reception of this packet is completed, the AR-200R changes to the current (currently displayed) phrase number.

(AR-100/2000 compatible)

Address(H)	SIZE(H)	DATA(H)	Parameter	Description
01 00 00 01#	00 00 02	00 - 07 00 - 7f	Phrase Number Phrase Number	upper 3bits lower 7bits
Phrase n	umber	<u>DATA(H)</u>		
A0001	A0500	00 00 - 03 73		

* Only received packet data.

* When reception of this packet is completed, the AR-200R changes to the current (currently displayed) phrase number.

OExclusive Address Table Recording Settings

Address(H)	SIZE(H)	DATA(H)	Parameter	Description
01 00 10 11# 12#	00 00 03	00 - 07 00 - 7f 00 - 02	Phrase Number Phrase Number REC Source	upper 4bits lower 7bits 0:ANALOG-IN 1:DIGITAL-IN 2:MIDI-IN
<u>Phrase n</u> A0001		<u>DATA(H)</u> 00 00 - 07 67		

* Only received packet data.

When reception of this packet is completed, the AR-3000 goes into REC PAUSE mode.
 However, if a phrase has already been saved, the AR-3000 deletes that phrase and goes into REC PAUSE mode.

(AR-100/2000 Address(H)) compatible) SIZE(H)	DATA(H)	Parameter	Description
01 00 00 01# 02#	00 00 03	00 - 07 00 - 7f 00 - 02	Phrase Number Phrase Number REC Source	upper 3bits lower 7bits 0:ANALOG-IN (MIDI REC OFF) 1:MIDI-IN (MIDI REC ON)
<u>Phrase r</u> A0001 -		<u>DATA(H)</u> 00 00 - 03 73		

* Only received packet data.

When reception of this packet is completed, the AR-200R goes into REC PAUSE mode. However, if a phrase has already been saved, the AR-200R deletes that phrase and goes into REC PAUSE mode.

AUDIO RECORDER

Date : July.1, 2006 Version : 1.00

Model AR-200R Media Player Section

MIDI Implementation Chart

	Function	Transmitted	Recognized	Remarks
Basic Channel	Default Changed	All channels *1 x	x 1–16	Memorized
Mode	Default Message Altered	X X ******	x *2 x *2	
Note Number :	True Voice	0 –127	x *2 x	
Velocity	Note ON Note OFF	0 *1 0 *1	x x	
After Touch	Key's Ch's	0 0	x x	
Pitch Bend		0	x	
Control Change	10 11 0 - 119	0 *1 *1 *1	x *2 x *2 x	Panpot Expression Messages other than the above
Program Change :	True #	0 *1	x *2 1–6, 21–30	Program number : 1–11, 21–30,71–80,128
System Exc		0 *1	0	
System Common	: Quarter Frame : Song Pos : Song Sel : Tune	x *3 x x x	X *4 X X X X	
System Real Time	: Clock : Commands	o *1 o	x x	
Aux Messages	All Sounds OFF Reset All Controllers Local ON/OFF All Notes OFF Active Sensing System Reset	o *1 o *1 x o *1 x x	x x x x x x	
Notes		*1 Transmitted only durin *2 o x is selectable. *3 Transmitted when Syn *4 Received when Sync S	c Out is at MTC.	
	MNI ON, POLY MNI OFF, POLY	Mode 2 : OMNI ON, M Mode 4 : OMNI OFF, N		o : Yes x : No

AUDIO RECORDER

Model AR-200R

MIDI Implementation Chart

Date : July. 1, 2006 Version : 1.00

MIDI Recording Section

	Function	Transmitted	Recognized	Remarks
Basic Channel	Default Changed	x x	all channels x	Not Basic Channel
Mode	Default Message Altered	X X ******	x x	
Note Number :	True Voice	X *****	0 –127 0 –127	
Velocity	Note ON Note OFF	x x	0 0	
After Touch	Key's Ch's	x x	0 0	
Pitch Bend		x	0	
	0 –119	x	0	
Control Change				
Program		x *1	0	
Change : System Exc	True #	x	0 –127 o	
System Common	: Quarter Frame : Song Pos : Song Sel : Tune	x x x x	x x x x	
System Real Time	: Clock : Commands	X X	X 0	
Aux Messages	: All Sounds OFF : Reset All Controllers : Local ON/OFF : All Notes OFF : Active Sensing : System Reset	x x x x x x x	o o x o (123–127) *1 o x	
Notes		Mode messages (123–12 performed.	7) are stored/transmitted aft	er All Note Off processing
	MNI ON, POLY MNI OFF, POLY	Mode 2 : OMNI ON, M Mode 4 : OMNI OFF, M		o : Yes x : No

Specification

Recording Format

RDAC (Roland Digital Audio Coding)

RDAC-GRADE (Sampling rate)

S-HIGH: 48kHz HIGH: 44.1kHz STANDARD: 32kHz LONG1: 22.05kHz LONG2: 16kHz ANNOUNCE:8kHz

Playback rate Area

S-HIGH: 20Hz-22kHz HIGH: 20Hz-20kHz STANDARD: 20Hz-15kHz LONG1: 20Hz-10kHz LONG2: 20Hz-7.5kHz

RDAC-Mode (Signal processing method)

H-Linear:	24-bit PCM recording (Playback Only)
WAV:	16bit WAV (Playback Only)
Linear:	16-bit PCM recording
Mode 3:	2.5 times extended Recording time than Linear.
Mode 2:	2.5 times more extended Recording time than
	Linear.
Mode 1:	4 times more extended Recording time than
	Linear.

Recording media

Memory card (CF Card)

* In order to recording/playback of audio signal and MIDI data, you will need to purchase one of the CF cards.

CompactFlash Card Slot

1Slot

Phrase types

Audio phrases (stereo/mono) MIDI phrases

Number of phrases

- Card made on the AR-200R/200 Maximum 250 Phrases
- Card made on the AR-3000R/3000/200S Maximum 1000 phrases

Playback method

- Card made on the AR-200R/200S/200 Manual playback
 Direct playback: 9 phrases, 2 modes(Normal, Last-In) Interval playback: 9 phrases
 Count Playback: 100phrases,5 program
 Binary playback: 250 phrases
 MIDI playback: 500 phrases
 AR-LINK playback: 1000 phrases
- Card made on the AR-3000R/3000 Manual playback
 Direct playback: 9 phrases, Interval playback: 9 phrases
 Count Playback: 100 phrases,5 program Binary playback: 250 phrases
 MIDI playback: 500 phrases
 AR-LINK playback: 1000 phrases

Equalizer (Functions only when using cards that have been prepared on the AR-3000R/3000.)

High : -12dB – +12dB (3/6kHz, Shelving Type) Low : -12dB – +12dB (200/400Hz, Shelving Type)

Residual Noise Level (Input Short, front sense: middle, DIN- Audio,typ.)

- 80dBu or less

S/N Ratio

Output : 84 dB (DIN-Audio, Typ)

Display

7 Segment 4 characters (LED)

Controllers

INPUT Volume Knob Card Eject Button PLAY Button STOP Button INCrement Button DECrement Button REC MODE Switch (Bottom Chassis) MODE Switch (Bottom Chassis)

Indicators

MIDI /CLIP Indicator SLAVE Indicator PLAY Indicator MEMORY FULL Indicator

Specification

Connectors

LINE IN Jacks (MONO/L, R, RCA phono type) Control I/O Terminal (5 pin Terminal Block with M3 bolts) Control I/O Connector (25 pin D-sub type) MIDI Connectors (OUT/THRU, IN, 5-pin DIN type) AR-LINK Connectors (OUT, IN, 8-pin mini DIN type) Audio Output Jacks (1/4 inch phone type, TRS balanced) PHONES Jack (Stereo 1/4 inch phone type)

Power Supply

DC 9 V (AC Adaptor) DC 9 V – DC 24 V (Control/Power In Jack, Control I/ O Connector)

Current Draw

1000 mA (When using the AC Adaptor)1200 mA (When using an external power supply unit)

Dimensions

218 (W) x 234.7 (D) x 44 (H) mm 8-5/8 (W) x 9-1/4 (D) x 1-3/4 (H) inches

Weight

1.4 kg / 31 bs 2 oz.

Operating Free-air Temperature Range

0–40 degrees Celsius 32–104 degrees Fahrenheit

Operating Free-air Humidity Range

0-80% (non-condensing)

Accessories

Rubber Feet x 4 Card Protector (with 2 screws) Owner's Manual AC Adaptor (PSB-1U)

Options

Rack Mount Adaptor:	RAD-50
AR-LINK Cable:	ARC-15

- * 0 dBu=0.775Vrms
- * In the interest of product improvement, the specifications and/ or appearance of this unit are subject to change without prior notice.

Input/Output Standard

Input Standard (INPUT VOLUME knob at center position)

Input Jack	Input Sense	Rated Input Level	Non Clip Max Input Level	Input Impedance	Recommended Source Impedance
Line Input Jack (Unbalanced)	-10 dBu	0 dBu	+2 dBu	10 k ohms	1 k ohms or less

Output Standard (INPUT VOLUME knob at center position)

Output Jack	Rated Output Level	Non Clip Max Output Level	Output Impedance	Recommended Load Impedance
Audio Output Jack (Unbalanced)	+4 dBu / -10 dBV	+6 dBu	600 ohms	600 ohms or more
Phones Jack		1mW+1mW *1	100 ohms	30 ohms or more

*0 dBu = 0.775 Vrms, -10 dBV=-7.79 dBu *1: 100 ohms with both channels loaded

Dimentions



*Dimensions are with card inserted and rubber feet (included) attached. *The power cord is not included.

Index

A

AR-LINK	
AR-LINK SLAVE	

В

Binary Playback	31
С	
Card Compatibility	17
Card Protector	11
Card-spcific Audio Recording Time Chart	53
Control Input Connectors	28
Control Input Playback	
Control Out	

D

Deleting Phrases	
Direct Playback	

I

-	
Implementation	58
Interval Playback	
5	

Μ

Manual Playback	24
MEMORY FULL Indicator	23
MIDI Control	42
MIDI Implementation Chart	64
MIDI Note Map	43
MIDI Note Out	44
MIDI Phrase	26
MIDI Receive Channel	44
MIDI/CLIP Indicator	22, 26–27
MMC	42
MTC	42

Ν

No-voltage/Make-contact	

Р	
Phrases	
Playback Mode	
Playing Back MIDI Phrases	

R

RDAC	19–21
RDAC-Grade	19
RDAC-Mode	20
REC MODE SW	
Recorded Phrase Data	54
Recording Type	21
0 71	

S

Sampling Frequency	
Slave	
Switch Protect	56

Т

Ingger Recoluting20	Trigger Recording	
---------------------	-------------------	--



-For EU Countries -

This product complies with the requirements of EMC Directive 2004/108/EC.

-For the USA -

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION RADIO FREQUENCY INTERFERENCE STATEMENT

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses, and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

This device complies with Part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) this device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

Unauthorized changes or modification to this system can void the users authority to operate this equipment. This equipment requires shielded interface cables in order to meet FCC class B Limit.

— For Canada

NOTICE

This Class B digital apparatus meets all requirements of the Canadian Interference-Causing Equipment Regulations.

AVIS

Cet appareil numérique de la classe B respecte toutes les exigences du Règlement sur le matériel brouilleur du Canada.

-For C.A. US (Proposition 65) -

WARNING

This product contains chemicals known to cause cancer, birth defects and other reproductive harm, including lead.

* Microsoft and Windows are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

- * Windows[®] is known officially as: "Microsoft[®] Windows[®] operating system."
- * CompactFlash and (are trademarks of SanDisk Corporation and licensed by CompactFlash association.
- * Roland Corporation is an authorized licensee of the CompactFlash[™] and CF logo () trademarks.
- * MMP (Moore Microprocessor Portfolio) refers to a patent portfolio concerned with microprocessor architecture, which was developed by Technology Properties Limited (TPL). Roland has licensed this technology from the TPL Group.

